ANNUAL
REPORT

2024

INTE RI\AYN 4=

SSSSSSSSSSSSS



INTE RWiPAY S

SECURITIEE LT

Contents

02

Company Information

03

Vision & Mission Statements

04

MNotice of Annual General Meeting

08

Profile of Board of Directors

10

Chairperson Review

11

Directors’ Report to the Members

21

Six Years at a Glance

22

Gender Pay Gap Statement

23

Statement of Compliance with the
code of Corporate Governance

ANMUAL REPORT 2024

25

Review Report to the Members on
Statement of Compliance with the
code of Corporate Governance

27

Independent Auditors’ Report
to the Members

33

Statement of Financial Pasition

34

Statement of Profit or Loss
and Other Comprehensive Income

36

Statement of Changes in Equity

37

Statement of Cash Flows

38

Motes to the Financial Statements

76

Pattern of Shareholding

Annexure
Form of Proxy




INTE R \AYR =

SECURITIEE LT

Company Information

Board of Directors

Audit Committes

HR & R Commitiee

Company Secretary

Chief Financial Officer

Auditors

Legal Advisors

Share Registrar

Bankers

Registered Office

Lahore Branch{
I B Toners,
Property No. 28,
111h Floor, Block K,
M WA Alam Road,
Gubberg il

Website

Stock Exchange
Branch 1:

Room Mos. 10038 -

10 OMB, Stock Exchangs
Mew Building, Stock
Exchange Road, Karach

AMNMNUAL REPORT 2024

hrs, Erum Bilwan) - Charperson

Wr. Shehzad Hussain - Director

Mr. Muhammad Rehan Alam - Director

W Wuhammad Ashfag - Director

hr. Muhammad Ahmed Masooo - Director
Mr. Raza lafr| - Director

Mr Wajid Hussain - CEC & Trirector

W Muhammad Ashtag - Chairman
Mr. Muhammad Rehian Alam - Member
W Shehzad Hussain - Member

Wr_Shehzad Hussain - Chairman
Mr. Rehan Alam - Member

hr Wajid Hussain - Member

Wir Raza lafri - Member

M. Shahid Kamal
W Zulfigar Ali

M. Rahman Sarfaraz Rahim igbal Rafig & Charered Accountants
Flot # 180, Block-A, Sindh Mushim Cooperative Housing
Lociety (3.M, € H.5 Karachl, 744001,

M. Mohsin Tayvebaly & Co, (MTC) 15t Floor, Dime Centre,
BC-4, Block 9, Kehkshan, Clitton, Karachi, Pakistan

Pinfani & Vadria Partner {Lawyers)
151 Flogr, 24-C, Lane 9, Khayaban-e-Bukhari,
Phase VI, DHA, Karachi

hs. F.D. Registrar Services (Pvt,) Limited
Office Mo, 1705-4, 17th Floor, Saima Trade Tawer,
LI Chundrigar Road, Karachl, Pakistan

Bank Alfalan Limited

Askan Bank Limited

United Bank Limited

Allied Bank Limied

Bank Al Habib Limited

Habib Metropalitan Bank Limited
Standard Chartered Bank Limited
Habib Bank Limited

15 Bank Limited

Meezan Bank Limited

MCB Bank Limited

Dubai Isiamic Bank

Summit Bank

Al Baraka Bank

Bahsia Complex-=1V, Sth Floor, Extension Block, Ch. Khalique-uz-Zaman Road,
Gizri, karachi -75604, Pakistan

Stock Exchange Bahadurabad: Karanig:
Branch 2: Halad Trade Centre, Intermarkat House,
Fakistan Stock Exchangs Suite No. 212, 2nd Plat Mo. 38-A,

Main Bulldirig, Surte Mo
139140 & 409, Ard &
dth Fioor, Karachi

Fione, Block-3,
BACHS,
Earachi.

Adjacent Genix
Pharma, ¥arangi
Cragk, Karachi.

WAL IMISE CUMTIRS.C0m, gk

02



INTE R \AY =

SECURITIEE LT

Our vision

Qur vision is to develop Intermarket
Securities on a professional basis in
order to become the leading market
player in the financial services sector
and a valued contributor in the
development of financial markets.
We will offer best-in-class service in
all our business lines and introduce
superior technology solutions while
keeping our clients' interests on top

at all times.

ARNMUAL REPOQRT 2024

Our mission

To become the preferred brokerage
firm in Pakistan while playing a
positive role in capital market
development, leading to
enhancement in the country's
investor base.
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Motice is hereby given that 26th Annual General Meeting of the Members of Intermarket Securities Limited {'the Company')
will be held on Monday, April 28, 2025 at 3:00 pm at ICAP Auditorlum, Chartered Accountants Avenue, Clifton, Karachi
and through video link arrangement, to transact the following businesses:

Ordinary Business:

T

To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended
December 31, 2024, together with the Directors' and Auditors' Reports thereon;

2. To appoint Statutory Auditors of the Company for the financial year ending December 31, 2025 and to fix their
remuneration. The present audritors, being eligible, have offered themselves for re-appointment.
Web-link
https/hannew imsecurities.com . pk/wp-
content/uploads/2025/04/annual_Report_2024 pdf

Special Business:

H To consider and, if desmed fit, to pass the following as Special Resolution, with or without modification(s), for the
subdivision of the Company's share capital
"RESOLVED THAT, pursuant ic Section B5(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2017 and Article 23 of the Articles of
Association of the Company, the existing capital of the Company, including authonzed, issued, and paid-up capital,
be and is hereby altered such that the face value of each ordinary share of the Company is changed from Rupees
Ten (Rs, 10/~) 1o Rupee One (Re. 1/}, thereby subdividing each share into ten (10) ordinary shares of Re, 1/- each,
with no change in the rights and privileges attached to the shares."
"FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Authorized Capital of the Company be subdivided from 200,000,000 ordinary
shares of Rs. 10/~ each to 2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of Re, 1/- and issued/subscribed/paid-up Capital of the
Company be subdivided from 128,751,024 ordinary shares of Rs, 10/~ each to 1,287,510,240 ordinary shares of
Re, 1/- each."
"FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Clause V of the Memorandum of Association and Article 4 of the Articles of
Association of the Campany be amended accardingly to reflect the above subdivision. "
"FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Chief Executive Officer, any Director, the Company Secretary, or the Chief Financial
Officer of the Company be and are hereby jointly or severally authorized to take all necessary actions to implement
the above reselutions including flling/submitting the required decuments with SECP/PSX/CDC etc.”

4. To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair.
A Staternent under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act 2017 pertaining 1o the special businesses is being sent
to the shareholders along with this notice.

By crder of the Board
SHAHID KAMAL
Karachi April 07, 2025 Company Secretany
NOTES:

%

The Share Transfer Books of the Campany will remain closed for the period from Apnl 21, 2025 to April 28, 2025
thath days inclusive) and no transfer of shares will be accepted for registration during this period. Transfers received
in arder at the Office of Company's Share Registrar M5, ED, Registrar Services (Private) Ltd, Cffice# 1705, 17th Floor,
Saima Trade Tower A, 11 Chundrigar Road Karachi, Pakistan ("Registrar’) at the close of business on April 18, 2025
the last working day before the start of book closure date will be considered in time to attend and vote at the
Meeting

Any membier who want to attend the meeting via video link must send their particulars (Name, copy of CNIC, Folio
number, cell number through email at company secretary@imsecurities.com.pk at least 48 hours before the time
of meeting. After due verification of the said particulars a video link/ user id & password will be sent through email
for connecting the meeting

AMNMNUAL REPORT 2024
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3 & member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at this meeting, may appoint another person as hisfhar
proxy to attend and vote instead of him/her, Proxies, in order 1o be effective, must be received at the Registered
Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting.

4. C0C shareholders entitled to attend and vote at the meeting must bring his/her Participant 1D and Account/Sub-
Account number along with original CMIC or original passpert to authenticate histher identity. In case of Corporate
entity, resolution of Board of Directars/Power of Attorney with specimen signature of the nominee shall be praduced
(unless provided earlier) at the time of the meeting.

5. Far appainting the proxy, COC shareholders shall submit the proxy form as per above requirements together with
attested copy of CHNIC or Passport of the beneficlal owner and proxy. In case of corporate entity, the Board of
Directors' resolution/power of attorney, along with the specimen signature of the nominge, shall be submitted
along with the proxy farm to the Company.

" The proxy form shall be witnessed by two witnesses with their names, addresses, and CHIC numbers. The proxy
shall produce histher ariginal CHIC or ariginal Passport at the time of meeting.

6. Members are requestad to notify/submit the following information/documents, in case of book entry securities in
CDS to their respective participants and in case of physical shares to the registrar of the Company by quoting their
folio numbers and name of the Company at the above mentioned address, if not earlier notified/submitted:
" Change in their addresses, if any.

" Members, who have not yet submitted attested photocepy of their valid CNIC are requested to submit the same

along with folio numbers at earliest, directly to the Company's Share Registrar Mis. ED. Registrar Services [Pvt)
Ltd.

7. In accordance with the Companies (Distribution of Dividends) Regulations, 2017, shareholders are requested 1o
provide required dividend mandate infarmation (IBAN) to their respective CDS accounts through their participants
or to the Share Registrar (if shares are in physical form) for direct credit of cash dividends into their designated bank
accounts through electronic modes,

B. The shareholders of the Company are hereby informed that as per provisions of Section 72 of the Companies Act,
2017 {'the Act’), the companies are reguired to replace their physical shares with book-sntry-form within a period
not exceeding four years from the date of the promulgation of the Act. The Securities and Exchange Commission
of Pakistan ('SECPY), vide their letter File no. CSIVEDMIsC/2016-639-640 dated 26th March, 2021, has advised
all listed companies to pursue their such shareholders who still held their shares in physical form for converting
the same into CDC. Therefore as advised by SECF the shareholders who hold physical shares are requested to
canvert the same into book-entry-form as soon as possible;

9. Pursuance to the SECP's SRO No. 3830)2023 dated 21 March 2023 the Company has sought approval from
members in the EQOGM held on December 20, 2024, Therefore, audited financial staternent for the financial year
ended December 31, 2024 will be circulated through QR enabled code and web link. However, hard copies of
the financial statements along with all respective report can be provided on written demand of the members at
their registered address. Furthermaore, aforesaid Financial Statements and reports will also be available at the website
of the Company www. imsecurities.com.pk at least twenty-one days before the date of meeting,

E-Voting and Postal Ballot

Members are hereby notified that pursuant to the Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 2018 read with Sections
143-144 of the Companies Act, 2017 and SRO 219212022 dated 5th December 2022, members will be allowed
to exercise their right 1o vote for the special business in accordance with the canditions mentioned therein, Fallowing
aptions are being provided to members for voting:

i) E-Vioting Procedure

1) Details of the e-voting facility will be shared through an e-mall with those members of the Company who have
their valid CNIC numbers, cell numbers, and e-mail addresses available in the register of members of the Company
by the close of business on 18th April 2025,

2) The web address, login details and password will be communicated to members via email. The security codes will
be communicated to members through SMS and email from web portal of the e-voting service provider,

3) Identity of the members intending to cast vote through E-\Vieting shall be authenticated through electronic signature
or authentication for login.

E-Wating lines will start from 24th April 2025, 9:00 a.m. and shall close an 27st April 2025 a1 5:00 p.m. Members
can cast their votes any lime during this period,

Once the vote on a resolution is cast by a member, he / she shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

4)
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i) Postal Ballot

1) Members may alternatively opt for voting through postal ballot. Ballot Paper is also available for download from
the website of the Company at www.imscurities.com.pk ar use the same as annexed to this Notice and published
in newspapers.

2) The members shall ensure that duly filled and signed ballot paper, along with copy of Computerized Mational Identity
Card (CMIC) should reach the Chairman of the meeting through pest at Bahria Complex IV, Sth Floor, Extension
Block, Gizr, Karachi (Attention to the Company Secretary) OR through the registered emall address of sharehalder
at chairman@imsecunties.com.pk with subject of 'Postal Ballot for AGM 2025' by Friday , 25th April 2025 hefore
5:00 p.m. The signature on the ballot paper shall match with the signature on CNIC. A postal ballot received after
this time / date shall not be cansidered for vating.

3} Please note that in case of any dispute in voting including the casting of more than one vote, the Chairman shall
be the deciding authority,

10, All corporate members are requested to provide fist of ultimate beneficial shareholding having 10% and above
controls in their organization.

11 For any guery/information, members may contact the Company at email company.secretary@imsecurities.com.pk
andfar the Share Registrar of the Company at above mentioned address. Members may also visit website of the
Company www.imsecurities.com,pk for notices/infarmation,

STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 134(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017

This Staterment sets out the material facts concerning the Special Business to be transacted at the Annual General Meeting
of the Company scheduled for Monday, 28th April 2025:

The Board of Directors of Intermarket Securities Limited ("the Company’) has proposed the subdivision of the Company's
shares to enhance market iguidity, improve investor accessibility, and broaden the shareholder base. It is proposed that the
face value of each ordinary share be changed from Rupees Ten (Rs. 10/-) to Rupee One (Re. 1/-), thereby increasing the
number of shares tenfold without altering the total paid-up / authorized capital. Following the subdivision, the subscribed
and paid-up capital of the Company, currently comprising 128,751,024 ordinary shares of Rs. 104~ each, will be restructured
into 1,287,510,240 ordinary shares of Re. 1/- each. The company will announce a book closure date, falling after the
shareholders’ approval of special resolutions at the AGM. Entitled shareholders will receive ten (10} ordinary shares of Re,
1/~ each for every one (1) ordinary share of Rs. 10/~ held, upon completion of the necessary regulatory formalities. The newly
issued shares shall rank pari passu with the existing shares, with no change in the rights and privileges attached thereto.

The proposed subdivision necessitates amendments to Clause ' of the Memorandum of Association and Article 4 of the
Articles of Association to reflect the revised number and face value of the shares in the authorized capital. A comparison
of the existing and proposed clauses is as follows:

Memorandum of Association
Proposed Clause V

Existing Clause V

The authorized share capital of the Company is Rs.
2,000,000,000 (Rupeas one billion) divided into
200,000,000 {one hundred milhon) ordinary shares of
Rs. 10 each with power to increase, reduce or recrganize
the capital and to divide the shares in the capital tor
the time being into several classes, provided however,
that rights as betyween various classes of ardinary shares,
if any, as to profits, votes and other benefits shall be
strictly proportionate to the paid up value of the shares,

The authorized share capital of the Campany is Rs.
2,000,000,000 (Rupees two billion) divided into
2,000,000,000 {two billion) ordinary shares of Re.1/-
each with power 10 increase, reduce or reorganize the
capital and to divide the shares in the capital tor the
time being into several classes, provided however, that
rights as between various ¢lasses of ordinary shares,
if any, as to profits, votes and other benefits shall be
strictly proportionate to the paid up value of the shares.

Articles of Assodation

Existing Clause 4

Proposed Clause 4

The Authorized Capital of the company 15 Rs.
2,000,000,000 (Rupees wo billion enly) divided inte
200,000,000 {two hundred million) ordinary shares of
Rs. 104~ {Rupees ten) each,

The Authorized {apital of the company s Rs.
2,000,000,000 (Rupees two billion only) divided into
2,000,000,000 (two billion) ordinary shares of Bs. 1/~
(Rupees ten) each.

The Board recommends the above tor shareholders' approval as a Spedal Resolution in accordance with Section 85(1)(c)
of the Companies Act, 2017 and contirms that the proposed alterations comply with the applicable laws and regulatory
framework. The directors have no personal interest in the proposed resolution, except to the extent of their shareholding
in the Company.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 06
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Ballot Paper

Ballot Paper for Voti ﬂwg;ﬂgthnstaftur Special Business at the Annual General Mesting of Intermarket Securities Limited

to be held on 025 at 3:00 pm at ICAP Auditorium, Chartered Accountants Avenue, Clifton, Karachi
Duly filled/signed ballot pﬂgtr to be sent to the Chairman, Intermarket Securities Limited, Registered Office: 5% Floor, Bahria
Complex IV, Ext.

Block, Gizri, Karachi, Pakistan (website www.imsecurities.com.pk) or by email at
chairman@imsecurities.com.pk

MName of shareholderjoint shareholders

Registered Address
Falio £ COS Account Mumber

Mumber of shares held

MName of Proxy Holder

CMIC /Passoort Mumber (copy to be attached)
Additional Information and enclosures (In case of representative of body corporate, corporation and Federal Government.)

MName of Authorized Signatary

CMNIC/Passport Number (copy 1o be attached)

1. Please indicate your Vaote by ticking () the refevant box

2. In case both the boxes are marked as (), vour ballot paper shall be treated as “Rejected”

Vwe hereby exercise my/our vote in respect of the following Special Resolution through postal ballot by conveying my/our
assent or dissent to the following resalution by placing tick () mark in the appropriate box below:

|/ We assent to the | |/ We dissent to the

Description of Special Resolutions Resolutions (FOR) | Resolutions (AGAINST)
"RESOLVED THAT, pursuant fo Section B5(Ticl of the Comparies
Act, 2017 and Article 23 of the Articles of Associstion of the
Company, the existing caoital of the Company, including awthonzed
issued, and paiaug rrg.mm.{ be and 15 hereby alfered such that the
face walue of esch orainary share of the Company is changed from
Rupees Ten (Rs. JOC) to Aupee One (Re. 14~ thersby subdaividing
edch share info ten (10! orginagy shares of e 14 eadh, with no
change in Hhe rights and privileges attached to the shares. ©

“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Authorized Capital of the Company

be subdivided From 200,000, 000 araimary shares of Rs. 104 each to
2,000 000 000 ordinary shares of Re. 14 and ssuedSubscribedtbaid-
up Capital of the Company be subdivided from 128, 751,024 ordinary
5!:&29{ of Rs. 104 aach 0. 1,287, 570, 240 ordinary shares of Re. 1~
aach,

"FLIRTHER RESOLVED THAT the Clause V of the Memorandum of
Association and Article d of the Aricles of Assocation af the
Company be armended accordingly fo reflect the above subdivsion.

Signature of shareholder(s)/ Proxy Holder/Authorized Signatory Place: Date:
NOTES/PROCEDURE FOR SUBMISSION OF BALLOT PAPER:

1. Copyof CHIC/Passport {in case of foreigner) should be enclosed with the postal ballot form,

2, Signature an postal ballat should match with signature on CNIC/Passport (in case of foreignar),

3. Incomplete, unsigned, incorrect, defaced, torn, mutilated, over written ballot paper will be rejected,

ANMNUAL REPORT 2024 a7
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Directors’ Profile

ERUM BILWANI

Chairpersan

Mrs. Bilwani is the sponsor and major shareholder of Intermarket Securities, which was created post the acquisition
of ING Barings Pakistan operations in the early 2000s.

She is a successful Pakistani businesswoman and investor with diversified experience in the financial sector primarily
in the capital market. She is also a philanthropist and has worked with various NGOs in Pakistan, with a keen focus
on making Pakistan better for women and developing oppartunities for women to gain education and work in a safe
and reputable environment. Mrs. Bilwani holds a Bachelor's degree in Economics from the University of Karachi.

WAJID HUSSAIN
Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Wajid has over 25 years of experience in Pakistan's capital market and has held key management positions
throughout his career. Before joining Intermarket Securities Ltd in 2018, he was the CEQ and Board member at Global
Securities for almost 15 years. He has forged strong business relationships with the top financial institutions in Pakistan
Since joining IMS, he has been instrumental in initiating new trading relationships to expand the firm's client base and
market share.

SYED RAZA HAIDER JAFRI

Executive Director

Mr. Raza possesses more than 15 years of experience in sell-side equity research and sales. Prior to rejoining Intermarket
Securities Ltd, Raza was the Chief Executive Officer of EFG Hermes Pakistan. Raza commenced his career at AKD
Securities Limited, and was last associated with AKD in the capacity of Head of Research. Raza carries an in-depth
understanding of majors sectors at the PSX with a specialization in covering Commercial Banks. He was awarded "Best
Analyst of 2015/167 by CFA Society Pakistan, and also received " Best Equity Salesperson® from CFA Society Pakistan
two years in a row. Raza graduated from the Lahore University of Management Sciences and is a CFA charter holder

SHEHZAD HUSSAIN

Independent Director

Mr. Shiehzad has over 20 years® experience in Pakistan's capital markets and has had a distinguished career representing
some of the country's leading financial institutions.

Mr. Shehzad served as CEO of Intermarket Securities from 2014-2018, During his tenure at IMS, the company launched
research and investment banking, as well as an institutional trading desk, leading to a rapid increase in market share.
Earlier, Mr. Shehzad served as an advisor to the tund management function of the Employees Old Age Benefit
Institution (EQBI} which is the national contribution and pension institution with AUMs of USE3 bn.
Prior to EOBI, he served as Vice President Capital Markets at Pak Oman Investment Company - a specialized financial
institution formed as a IV between the Government of Pakistan and the Sultanate of Oman.

MUHAMMAD ASHFAQ

Independent Director

Mr. Ashfaq is a seasoned Chartered Accountant with over 25 years of audit and advisory experience, primarily in the
financial services sector. Holding prestigious certifications, including FCA (Pakistan), CIMA and CGMA (UK), and CRA
{Australia), he has built a distinguished career in financial advisory, internal audit, and corporate governance.
His expertise spans due diligence, internal control systems, and agreed-upon procedures for strategic organizations

across the Middle East. He has played a key role in establishing internal audit functions for large corporations and has
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held leadership positions, including Director of Internal Audit at Savola Group, His extensive market experience in the
Widdle East positions him as a highly skilled professional in financial oversight and strategic advisory.

REHAN ALAM

Non-Executive Director

wir. Behan began his professional career at KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co., a member firm of KPMG International, where
he gained valuable experience working with multinational clients across various economic sectors, including Maersk
Pakistan and Singer Pakistan.

In late 2014, he joined Intermarket Securities, bringing with him diverse expertise in finance, compliance, audit, and
assurance. His broad industry exposure and strong professional background enable him to contribute effectively to
financial and regulatory functions.

AHMED MASOOD

Independent Director

Advocate Supreme Court

B.A-LL.B (Lahore University of Management Sciences), 2009

Wr. Ahmed Masood graduated with outstanding merit from the Lahore University of Management Sciences in the year
2011 and soon thereafter joined the firm of MCAS & W, as an associate, beginning his journey on to becoming the
Senior Partner of Haider Waheed Partners, During hes years of practice, he has established himself as an adept litigator,
known for his ability to identify the particulars needs of his clients, their circumstances and deliver to them effectively.
His practice before the bar has demanstrated a sound understanding of the law that is well grounded in research,
coupled with an argumentative style that is innovative, assertive and tackles even the most challenging propositions.
His areas of specialty range from taxation and customs, land and property, election disputes as well as claims pertaining
ta labour/ service and other contractual matters.
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Chairperson Review

Review Report by the Chairperson on the overall performance of Board and effectiveness of the role played by the
Board in achieving the Company's objectives:

¥ The Board of Directors ("the Board") of Intermarket Securities Limited ("IMS") has performed their duties
meticulously in safeguarding the best interest of shareholders’ of the Company and has managed the affairs of
the Company in an effective and efficient manner, towards achieving its chjective, in accordance with applicable
laws and regulations.

# The Board 1s comprised of diverse experience of professionals. They brought with them local and international
working expertise in various segments of the business. The Board has ensured that there is adequate representation
of non-executive and independent directors on the Board and its committees as required under the Code of
Corporate Governance (" Code") and that members of the Board and its respective committees has adequate skill
experience and knowledge to manage the affairs of the Company.

¥ The Board has formed an Audit Committee and Human Resource and Remuneration Committee and has approved
their respective TORs as required under the Code and has assigned them with adequate resources to achieve the
desired objective effectivaly.

¥ The Board has established and put in place the ngorous mechanism for an annual evaluation of its own performance
and that of its committees and indwidual directors,

#  The Board has ensured that the directors are provided with orientation courses to enable them to perform thair
duties in an effective manner and that the one director on the Board have already taken certification under the
Directors Training Program and the remaining directors meet the qualification and experience criteria of the Code,

# The Board has ensured that the meetings of the Board and that of its committee were held with the requisite
quorum, all the decision making were taken through Board resolution and that the minutes of all the meetings
including its committee are appropriately recorded and maintained.

¥ The Board has developed a code of conduct setting forth the professional standards and corporate values adhered
through the Company and has developed significant policies for smooth functioning.

#  The Board has actively participated in strategic planning process enterprise risk management system, policy
development, and financial structure, monitoring and approval.

¥ All the significant 1ssues throughout the year were presented before the Board or its committees to strengthen
and formalize the corporate decision making process.

¥ The Board has ensured that the adequate system of internal contral is in place and its regular assessment through
self-assessment mechamism and for internal audit activities.

¥  The Board has ensured that adequate information is shared among its members in a timely manner and the Board
members are kept abreast of developments between meetings.

¥ The Board has exercised its Eowers in light of the power assigned to the Board in accordance with the relevant
laws and requlation applicable on the Cnmpanﬁl and the Board has always prioritized the Compliance with all
the applicable laws and requlation in terms of their conduct as directors and exercising their powers and decision
making.

On behalf of the Board, | would like 1o thank all the stakehaolders for their trust and support. | am confident that the
Company has all the ingredients necessary 1o achieve the expectations of all its stakeholders.

In conclusion, we pray to almighty Allah for his blessings, guidance, health and prosperity 1o us, our Company and
its Group Company, Country and MNation,

Erumg Bilwani
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Directors’ Report to the Members

BEGIN IN THE NAME OF ALLAH THE MOST GRACIOUS AND MERCIFUL

Dear Member(s)
Assalam-o-Alykum!

We, on behalf of Board of Directors of your Company, are pleased to present herewith Audited Financial Statements of the
Company for the year ended December 31, 2024, together with the Auditors' Report thereon.

Principle Activities of the Business & Performance Review

The core business activity of your Company is equity brokerage. The Company earned operating revenues of Rs. 996 21
million during year under review as compared to Rs, 455.09 million for the corresponding period. Before and after-tax profit
stood at Rs. 543 82 million and Rs. 482 25 million respectively compared to before and after tax earnings of Rs. 224,79
million and Rs. 203.29 millien respectively for the corresponding pericd.

The operating results of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2024 are summarized as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2024 2023

Rupees Rupees
Operating Revenues 996,212 817 455 086,614
(LossiProfit before tax 543 823,280 224 785,618
(Loss)Profit after tax! 482,251,288 203,294,984
(LossiEamings per share 4,06 1.87

The Company reparted net profit of Rs. 482 25 million {Rs. 406 per share) in 2024 versus a net profit of Rs, 203.25 million
{Rs. 1.87 per share) in the previous year. 2024 was a momentous year the Company, as the merger with EFG Hermes Pakistan
was successfully concluded. This resulted in higher market share for the Company at a time when market volumess picked
up on a confluence of economic stabilization and monetary easing. Consequently, Operating Revenue increased by a healthy
119%, outpacing the increase in Admin Expenses, ultimately resulting in strong growth in profitability.

2025 has also commenced an a strong footing, with inflation falling to multi-year lows and the current account remaining
in control. However, it is impartant that Pakistan sustains its ongoing IMF program and delivers on promised structural reforms
in order to preserve hard-fought economic stability and successfully transition towards sustainable growth. This can help
kesp positive investor sentiment intact,

PROPOSED SHARE SUBDIVISION

To enhance market liquidity, improve investor accessibility, and align IMS's stock price with broader market participation,
the Board of Directors has proposed a subdivision of the Company's shares. This subdivision will reduce the face value from
Rs. 10 to Re. 1 per share, in compliance with Section 85(1){c) of companies act and Article 23 of the Company's Articles of
Association.

As @ result, the Company's issued, subscribed, and paid-up share capital will be restructured from 128,751,024 ordinary
shares of Rs. 10 each to 1,287,510,240 crdinary shares of Re. 1 each, without any change in the total paid-up capital.

Shareholders will receive 10 ordinary shares of Re. 1/- each for every one ordinary share of Rs. 10/- held as of the effective
date subject 1o requlatory approvals.

The Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company will be altered to incorporate the above subdivision accordingly

Dividend and other appropriations

Since this is the first annual audited financial statement following the merger of Intermarket Securities Limited with EFG
Hermes Pakistan Limited, the Board of Directors has decided not to recommend any dividend payout. Instead, the Company
intends to retain earnings to support its financial growth and strengthen its long-term strategic position.

Post Balance Sheet Events

No material changes and commitments affecting the tinandial position of the Cumpanﬁ_have occurred between the end of
the financial year of the Company to which the balance shest relates and the date of this report.

Financial Statements

These financial statements have been endorsed by Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the Company,
recommended for approval by the Audit Committee of the Board, and approved by the Board of Directors for presenting
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before the Members and for Members' consideration, approval and adoption. The auditors of the Company, M/s, Rehman
Saﬁﬁmﬁq Rahbilm Igbal Rafig, Chartered Accountants, audited the financial statements and have issued an ungualified report
to the Members.

Auditors

The present auditors, M/s Rahman Sarfraz Rahim lgbal Rafig, Chartered Accountants, shall retire at the conclusion of Annual
General Meenng and being eligible for reappointment have offered themselves for the same. The Board of Directors of your
Company, based on the recommendation of the audit committes of the Board, proposed Mis Rahman Sarfraz Rahim Igbal,
Chartered Accountants, for reappointment as auditors of the Company for the ensuing year.

Entity Credit Rating

The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency (PACRA) has maintained credit rating of the Company as for long term A- (A minus) and
for short term A1 (A one) ratings have been assigned. These ratings reflect low expectation of credit risk and strong capacity
for timely repayments of financial commitments.

Broker Fiduciary Rating (BFR)

PACRA has maintained the Fiduciary Rating of the Company as BFRZ+. The outlook on the ESSI?‘ﬂEd ratings is 'Stable’. This
certification has endorsed the Company's Strang guality of management and dient services, and high likelihood of sustaining
operations.

Broker Management Rating (BMR)

PACRA has maintained the management rating of the Campany as BMR2+, The cutlook on the assigned ratings is 'Stable’,
This certification has endorsed the Company's capability in upholding sound regulatory compliance, control environment,
and financial management. Further, governance and risk management frameworks are effective while Human Resource,
Infarmation Technology and customer services are proactive,

Pattern of Shareholding

The detailed pattern of the shareholding and categories of shareholders of the Company as at December 31, 2024, as
required under the listing requlatians, have been appended to this Annual Repart,

Merger & Amalgamation status

Pleased to inform that the Sindh High Court sanctioned the merger of Intermarket Securities Limited {IMS) with and into
the Company through its Order dated October 09, 2024, In accordance with the apf:m'u'ed Scheme of Arrangement, the
merger was effective from July 01, 2024, and all necessary operational farmalities were successfully completed.

Followang the iImplementation of the Scheme, the Board of Directors of EFG Hermes Pakistan Limited ceased fo hold oifice,
and the resulting vacancies were :IuI?r filled by the directors of Intermarket Securities Limited (now the dissolved entity)
Further, as per scheme new shares of the Company were issued to the shareholders of the Intermarket Securities limited
as reflected in the shareholding structure as enclosed. Additionally, the Company has prepared the merged audited financial
statements as of December 31, 2024, in campliance with regulatory requirements.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Statement

The Company recognizes the significance of Corperate Social Responsibility (CSR) and remains committed to conducting
its business in an ethical, transparent, and socially responsible manner. We take necessary measures to fulfill our responsibilities
toward our stakehelders, society, and the environment

As a service-based organization, the Company ensures responsible energy consumption, envirenmental protection, and
workplace safety within its office premises. Initiatives are undertaken to promote sustainability, including efficient resource
utilization and a safe, healthy work envircnment for employees.

To uphold integrity and professionalism, the Cﬂmpaﬂﬁ has implemented robust systems and procedures to prevent corruption,
maintain ethical business practices, and safeguard the interests of clients and stakeholders.

The Company maintains strong and collaborative relationships with its peers, banking partners, regulators, and ather relevant
institutions, fostering trust and goodwill in the corporate ecosystem

The Board of Directors acknowledges the importance of social welfare and remains committed to supporting charitable
initiatives, subject to the Campany's financial position. During the period under review, the Company made donations to
charitable institutions and extended support to individuals in need, reinforcing its dedication to community welfare,
Furthermare, the Company contributes to the national economy by fulfilling its tax ebligations, with details of tazes and
levies disclosed in the financial statements

Corporate Governance

The Direclors canfirm campliance with the Corporale & Financial Reporting Framewark of the Code of Corporate Governance
for the annexed below:

al  The financial staterments, prepared by the managemenl of the Company, present fairly its state of affairs, the results
of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.
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b} Proper books of accounts of the Campany have been maintained.

£)  Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in the preparation of financial statements except for
the changes given in notes to the financial statements, if any, and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and
prudent judgments,

d}  International Financial Reparting Standards, as agplicable in Pakistan, have been followed in the preparation of financial
staternents and any departures there from has been adequately disclosed and explained.

e)  The systern of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored
f) There are no significant doubis upon the Company's ability to continue as a gaing concern
q) Key operating and financial data for last six years in summarized form 1s annexed

hy  There are no Statutory payments on account of taxes, duties, levies and charges which are outstanding as on December
31, 2024 except for those disclosed in financial statements.

i) The Company operates an approved contributary provident fund for its eligible employees. Value of investments as
per un-audited financial statements for the peried ended December 31, 2024 amounts to approximately Bs, 40,939, 738/

i i}uring the period four (7) meetings of Board of Directors were held. Attendance by each Director was as follows:

S. No. MName of Director N.D'. of meetings mr:vgiiﬁf 5

eligible to attend attendgd
1. *Ms. Erum Bilwani 1 1
2, *Mr. Wajid Hussain 1 1
3. “Mr. Raza Haider lafn 3] &
4, *Wr. Shehzad Hussain 1 1
5 *Mr. Muhammad Ashfag 1 1
f. *Mr. Muhammad Rehan Alam 1 1
7. *Mr. Murad Ansarl 1 1
8. *Mr. Johannes Gunnell & 5
9. *Ms. Sarah Maja 6 4
100 | *Mr. Mohamed Ebeid 6 5
11, | *Mr. Frayan Avari 3] b
12. | *Mr. Fayyaz llyas ] 0
13. | *Mr. Saad Ighal 1 ]
14, | *Mr. Shahid Kamal 3 3

*Saad lgbal and Murad Ansari resigned on 31-01-2024. Raza lafri was appointed on 31-01-2024 while Shahid Kamal
was appointed on 24-04-2024. Directors from Srno. 8 -12 were ceased as directors and Srno.1- 6 became directors
by way of merger as per 5cheme. New election of directors was held on December 20, 2024 and no meeting was
held with new beard during period under review.

- Leaye of absence was granted 1o Directors who could not attend the meetings.

- During the period, four (4) meetings of Audit Committee were held. Attendance by each Member was as Tollows:

. No. Name of Director No. of meetings m.ﬂh:"iﬁf
5 No amg-ot-LIrecio eligible to attend at::;dgds

Ta Mr. Jlohannes Gunnell 4 3

2. | Mr Fayyaz llyas 4 | 1

3. Mr. Freyan Avari l i

4, Ms. Sarah Maja 4 0

Leave of absence was granted to Members/Direclors who could nol atlend the Audit Commiltes meetings.

- During the period, one {1} meeting of Human Resocurce and Remuneration Committee (HRRC) was held
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. No. me of Dir r No. of meetings r'-rl.'"h‘.:.'i“::‘f
SNo Name o ecto eligible to attend atf:ﬁ:g;
1. hir. Frayan Avari i 1
2. Mr. Mohamed Ebeid 1 !
3. Ms. Sarah Maja 1 |

k) Pattern of shareholding 1s annexed at the end of report.

I} Directors have gone through orientations held on January 31, 2024 and Movember 22, 2024, The Company has plan
to send two newly elected directors on Directors Training Program during year 2025

m)  One of director already has certification in respect of Directors' Training Program,

ny  The Company is not in default or likely to default in any loans, sukuks or other debt instruments

oy The Directors and Executives including their respective spauses and miner children have not traded in the shares of
the Company during the period

{For the clause 'Q" above under Code of Cnrimrate Gowvernance the expression 'Executive’ includes, in addition to Chief
Executive Officer, Chief Operating Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit and Company Secretary by whatever
name called, all other employees of the Company having basic salary of Rs, 1,200,000/~ or above in a financial year.)

Economic Overview

Pakistan secured a 3year IMF EFF program for about US%7bn in September 2024, This came after the government pricritized
macroeconomic stability following elections in February 2024. Monetary tightening, to a record-high policy rate of 22.0%
earlier in the year, ensured that CPI climbed down from 28.3% Y-0-Y at the start of the year to 4.1% Y-0-Y by December.
This was complemented by Pakistan posting a rare current account surplus for the year, totaling to about +US8800mn in
2024, with remittances rising by a robust 32% Y-o-Y to US$34.6bn. The PKR alse consclidated around 280 to the USD,
finally stabilizing after having depreciated by 20% in 2023,

Going forward, it is imperative that Fakistan remains compliant with the IMF program. While macroeconomic stability has
been achieved, it is critical that economic discipline becomes entrenched so as to avoid the balance of payment crises that
unforturiately came to define the fast 15 years. Reforms such as widening of the tax base and privatization will be impaortant
in preserving macroeconemic stability, transitioning to sustainable growth, and boosting invester confidence.

Market Performance

The KSE100 Index gained an exceptional 84% in calendar year 2024, making it one of the best performing equity markets
in the world. Bullish momentum was consistently in place across the year, on the back of general elections, a successor IMF
EFF program, and sharp menetary easing once inflation came under control, Daily trading activity matched this enthusiasm,
with the KSE100 (ready market) delivering average daily trading value of PKR 14.9 bn in 2024 vs. PKR 8.0 bn in 2023, an
increase of 879% Y-o-Y, Local mutual funds were the most aggressive buyers, as AUMs shifted from fixed income to equity
funds. However, foreign institutional investors took advantage of the rapid rise inequity prices to sell down their holdings,

Future Prospect and Outlook

2024 was a momentous year for Intermarket Securities Limited as it saw the successful merger with EFG Hermes Pakistan,
This places your Company on solid footing to capitalize on the higher equity trading activity currently in place. If the
government is able to deliver on structural reforms, and successfully position the economy onte a sustainable growth path,
then the equity market should continue to deliver backed by strong investor enthusiasm and trading activity. However, if
the hard-fought macroecanomic stability proves 1o be fleeting, then it will likely have a detrimental impact on equity market
performance and brokerage activity. Overall, we remain optimistic about 2025,

Acknowledgements

The Board ot Directors of your Company wishes to place on record its gratitude to the regulators, its bankers, members,
clients and business partners for their continued cooperation and support. Further, the Board appreciates the valuable, loyal,
and commendable services rendered to the Company by its employees.

H conclusion, we pray toalmighty Allah for his blessings, guidance, health and prosperity to us, our Company, Country and
ation.

On behalf of the Board of Birectors

Chief Ezgcutive Officer Director

Karachl: March 25, 2024
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Six Years at a Galance

PARTICULARS December 31, December31, December31, December31, December31, December 31,
2024 2023 012 2021 2020 2019

Operating Performance {Rupees in 000)

Reverue §96,212 455,087 266,850 432231 415,444 220,538
Operating expenses B70,438 354,657 249,600 341479 a0.622 184,708
Firancial expenses 134,128 74 951 35,061 4101 26,370 24,045
{Other income 112,534 17,801 4089 7734 g1 36,105
Gain { (loss) on investments - ret 240,614 181,516 (170,009) (B, 734} (1,635) 22,782
Prafit / {loss) before lawes and tax 544,754 224,786 (183,731 27 650 64234 60,673
Profit /{loss) after lavies and tax 482,151 203,295 (157 958 (160,431} 72.970 45,423

Per Ordinary Shares (Rupees)

Earnirgs / (ss) per share 406 .87 i1.82) (147} 067 105
Break-up value per share 12.50 287 1.00 8.82 864 1541
Dividends (Percentage)

Cash : . - . P A
Bonus shares “ : . - . =

Assets & Liabilities (Rupees in 000)

Toial assets 3,874,620 2,138,898 1,201,579 1,3%, 7ol 1,700,716 1,147,323
Curent assets 333047 2,051,579 1,136,581 1,316,672 1,589,644 1,055,834
Current liabilities 2312152 1,163,026 437 B57 437 361 721,984 211,947

Financial Position (Rupees in 000)

Sharenolder's equity 1,608,815 965,837 161,542 59,501 938,526 LTRT
Share capital f65, 131 503,405 503,405 503,405 503,405 200,560
Reserves .

Shares autstanding- (Numiber in 000)

{Ref Nate 1} 128,751,024 108,735,374 108 735,374 108,735,374 108,735,374 43,330,885
Return on capital employvec- %) 29.98% 21.05% -25,99% -16.73% 1T% 6.80%
Return on total assete( %) 12.13% 5.50% -16:47% -11.45% 4.29% 3%6%
Cument ratio-times 1.51 1,76 2.80 30 220 5.00

The share capital of the year ended December 19 to December 23 have been retroactively restated to reflect the
effect of merger.

1
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EECURITIEE LTD

Gender Pay Gap Statement

Gender pay gap statement under Circular 10 of 2024

Following is gender pay gap calculated for the year ended 2024

1) Mean Gender Pay Gap: 40%
i Median Gender Pay Gap: 100%

i) Any other data/Details as deemed relevant: the above ratio reflect the overall gender pay gap across
the organization

12

ChiefExecutive Officer
March 25, 2025
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EECURITIEE LTD

Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations for year ended December 31, 2024

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:
) The total number of directors are seven (7) as per the following:

a. Male: 6 directors

b. Female: 1 director

2. The composition of board is as follows:

CATEGORY NAMES
a) Independent Directors 1) Mr. Shehzad Hussain
)

2} Mr Muhammad Ashfag

3 Mr. Ahmed Masood
b}  Non-Executive Directors 4) Mr. Muhammad Rehan Alam
€ Female Non-Executive Director 5 Mrs. Erum Bilwani
d)  Executive Director 6) Mr. Wajid Hussain

7 Syed Razs Haider Jafri

During the pericd under review, Directors Saad Igbal and Murad Ansari resigned on January 31, 2024. Raza
Jafri was appointed on the same date, while Shahid Kamal was appointed on April 24, 2024, Due to the merger,
the entire board of EFG Hermes Pakistan ceased to hold office, and the entire board of Intermarket Securities
Limited assumed the directorship of the Company as per the Scheme of Arrangement on November 22, 2024,
Subsequently, upon the completion of the board's tenure, new election was held on December 20, 2024, and
the aforementioned directors were elected on the same date.

3 The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director of other Pakistani listed companies,
excluding this company.

4, The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to
disserminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

5. The board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the
company, A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates on which they were
approved or amended has been maintained.

6. All the powers of the board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by
board/ shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regulations.

7. The meetings of the board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by
the board for this purpose. The board has complied with the requirements of Act and the Regulations with
respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of board

8. The board of directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance
with the Act and these Regulations. In this respect all independent directors are paid board meeting attendance
fee Rs. 25000/-

9.  The Company encourages our director to attend directors® training program and the Company has plan to send
two newly elected directors to get this training during calendar year 2025, Directors have gone through
orientations held on January 31, 2024 and November 22, 2024, etc.

The Board has approved appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit, including their
remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant requirements of the
Regulations
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11.  CFO and CEO duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the board.

12.  The board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

a) Audit Committee

Mr. Muhammad Ashfag Chairman

Mr, Shehzad Hussain fdember

M=, Rehan Alam Mermber
b}  HR and Remuneration Committee

Mr. Shehzad Hussain Chalrman

Mr. Rehan Alam Member

M, Wajid Hussain Member

13.  The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the committee
for compliance

14, The frequency of meetings (quarterly/half yearly/ yearly) of the committee were as per following:

a) Audit Committee Quarterly
b!  HR and Remuneration Committee Yearly

15.  The board has set up an effective internal audit function/ or has outsourced the internal audit function who
are considered suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and
procedures of the company.

16. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under
the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and registered with
Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance with International Federation
of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan and that they and the partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent,
dependent and non-dependent children) of the chief executive officer, chief financial officer, head of internal
audit, company secretary or director of the company.

17.  The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services
except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have
confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard,

18.  We confirm that all other requirements of the Regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 have been complied
with. Except below;

19.  Explanation for non-compliance with requirements (non-mandatory), other than regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32,
33 and 36 are below:

1 The Company has not setup a separate dedicated sustainability committee. However, the Board currently looks
into the sustainahility nisks and opportunities related matters and formation of a separate sustainability committee
is currently it's under consideration.

2) The Company has not setup a separate Nomination Committee and is of the view that the Board currently
includes individuals with extensive expartise in the areas for which a Nomination Committee is responsible in
terms of Regulation 29(2} and, as such, the formation of a separate Nemination Committee shall be made in
due course of time as and when deemed necessary.

3)  The Company has not setup a separate Risk Management Committee and is of the view that the Board currently
includes individuals with extensive expertise in the areas for which a Risk Management Committee is responsible
in terms of Regulation 30(2) and, as such, the formation of a separate Risk Management Committee is under
cansideration and shall be made in due course of time.

WAJIDHMUSSAIN RAZA JAFRI
Chief Executive Officer Director

Dated: March 25, 2025
Karachi
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT
To the members of M/s. Intermarket Securities Limited (Formerly EFG Hermes Pakistan Limited)

REVIEW REPORT ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE CONTAINED IN LISTED
COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 {*the Regulations™) prepared by the Board of Directors of Tntermarke
Securities Limited (Formerly EFG Hermes Pakistan Limited) for the yvear ended December 31, 2024 in
accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for complisnee with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our
responsibility 15 to review whether the Staternent of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's compliance
with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and 1o highlight any non-compliance with the
requirements of the Regulations, A review is limited primarily to inguiries of the Company’s personnel and
review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations,

As a part of our audit of the financial stitements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting
and intermal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are oot
required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risks and controls
or o form an opmion on the effeciivengss of such mternal controls, the Company’s corporate governance
procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the
Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their veview and approval, its related party
transaciions, We are only reguired and have ensured compliznee of this requirement to the extent of the approval
of the refated party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us 10 believe that the Statement of
Compliance docs not appropriately reflect the Company’s compliance, in all material respects, with the
requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the yvear ended December 31, 2024,

Further, we highlight below instances of non-complisnee with the non-mandatory requirements of the
Regulations as stated in the below-referred paragraphs of the Statement of Complianee:

5. Nature of | Paragraph Description of the Non-Compliance
No. | the No,
et

As per the Regulation [0A, the Board 1s responsible for governance and
aversight of sustinability risks and opportunities and, for this purpose,
is required / encoursged W ke o number of messures including. in
particular, mnplementation of policies to promole diversity, equity and
inclusion {DE&D): taking steps to proactively understand and address the
principal as well as emerging sustamability misks and opportunities;

Explanation ensuring that the Company’s sustainahility and DE&I related strategies,

for non- priveritics and targets as well as performance against these targets are

(1 compliance is 19 periodically reviewed and monitored; and establishment of dedicated

required sistainability commitiee having at least one [emale director, or

{Non- assipnment of additional responsibilities tooon existing board commitiee,
Mandatory)

Sinee the said requirements have been recently introduced vide S.R.O,
920 (12024 dated June 12, 2024, ns of the reporting date, 1), the
Compuany has not setup a separnte dedicated sustaimability committee.
However, the Board currently looks into the sustainability risks and
opportunitics related matters and formation of & separate sustainability
committee 15 curtently it's under consideration.
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- 3r-
5. Nature of | Paragraph Deseription of the Non-Compliance
No. the No. '
Reqguirement '
A per the Regulation no. 29 of the Regulations, the Board may conslitule
a separate commitiee, designated as the Nomination Committes, of such
number and class of directors. as it may deem appropriate in the
Explanation CIRCUIMELNCes,
for non-
(2) compliance is 19 As statesd in parngraph 19 of the S_I:;m:mtmt ol Compliance, the C{.:nlp;mj.'
& required has not selup a separate Nomination Committee and is of the view that
(Non= the Board carrently meludes individuals with extensive expertise in the
Mandatory) areas for which a Nomination Commitee is responsible in terms of
Regulation 29(2) and, as such, the formation of a separate Nomination
Committee shall be made m due course of time as and when decmed
necossary.
A per the Regulation no. 30 of the Regulations, the Board may constitute
a separate committee, designated as the Risk Management Committee, of
such number and class of directors, as [t may deem approprate in the
Explanation circumsiances,
fior non-
compliance is As stated in parapraph 19 of the Statement of Compliance, the Company
(3) : 19 ol : : E :
required has not setup a separale Risk Management Committee and 15 of the view
[ Non- that the Board currently includes individuals with extensive expertise in
Mandatory) the arcas for which a Risk Management Committee is responsible in

termis of Regulation 30(2) and, as such, the formation of a separate Risk
Managemen! Commitlee is under consideration and shall be made in due

course of time,
i

Karachi. RAHMAN SARFARAZ RAHIM IQBAL RAFIQ
Chartered Accountants

Date:  March 26, 2025
UDIN: CR202410213pYDNYAR]y
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
Te the members of Intermarket Securities Limited (Formerly EFG Hermes Pakistan Limited)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of M/s Intermarket Securities Limited (Formerly
EFG Hermes Pakistan Limited) - here-in afler referred o as ‘the Company’). which comprise the
statement of financial position as at December 31, 2024, the statement of profit or loss. the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity. the statement of cash flows for the year then
ended. and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and
other explanatory information (‘the financial statements’), and we state that we have obtained all the
information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the
purposes of the audit,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income.
the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part
thereot” conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and,
respectively, give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at December 31, 2024 and
of the profil, total comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its eash flows lor the year then
ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in
Pakistan, Our responsibilities under those standards are further desenibed in the Auditor s Responsibilities
Jor the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants” Code of Ethies for
Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code)
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilinies in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

Without modifying our opinion, we draw your attention to note 1.3 to the accompanying financial
statements which, among other matters, explains that, as a consequence of the reverse merger, the
financial statements represent a continuation of the financial statements of M/s. Intermarket Securities
Limited (IMS), the accounting acquirer. Accordingly, the corresponding figures presented in the
accompanying financial statements do not reflect the amounts previously reported by the Company
{tormerly 'EFG Hermes Pakistan Limited') in its financial statements for the vear ended December 31,
2023, Instead, they represent the pre-combination amounts of the assets. liabilities, equity, income and
expenses as recognized in the books of account of IMS for the twelve-month period ended December 31,
2023 (except for the retrospective adjustment made to the legal capital of IMS, the legal acquiree, to
reflect the legal capital of the Company, the legal acquirer).
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters are addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters,

Following is the key audit matter;

Deseription of the Key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Reverse Merger
{Refer note 1.3 10 the financial statements)

During the year, the Company {formerly 'EFG Hermes
Pakistan  Limited)  entered  into  a  Scheme of
Arrangement (‘the Merger Scheme’) with a public
unlisted company, Intermarket Securities Limited (IMS),
whereby, with effect from July 01, 2024, the enfire
business undertaking of IMS, including all its assets and
liabilities, were  trapsferred  to the Company
consideration for an issue of 108,735,374 ordinary shares
of the Company Lo the owners of IMS, Additionally, per
the Merger Scheme, which was duly sanctioned by the
Honeurahle High Court of Sindh (‘the Court'y on October
09, 2024, IMS was dissolved withoul winding up and the
name of the surviving entity (e, the Company) was
changed from 'EFG  Hermes Pakistan Limited' o
Intermarket Securities Limited, However, since the
owners of IMS as a group have received the largest
portion of the voting rights in the combined entity, and
also that the former management of IMS dominates the
senior management of the combined entity, the merger
transaction has been accounted for as a 'reverse
acquisition’ with IMS being identified as the ‘accounting
acquirer' (legal acquiree) and the Company being
icdentified as the "accounting acquiree’ (legal acquirer).
Accordingly, the finaneial statements have been treated.
and desenbed as such, as a continuation of the financial
statements ol IMS, the accounting acquirer.

Our audit procedures included, but were not limiled
to, the following:

Reading the minutes of meetings of the
board of directors /| members of the
Company and IMS, as well as the Scheme
of Arrangement duly sanctioned by the
Court to gain an insight into the saliemt
features of the merper scheme and its
principal terms and conditions;

Evaluating  the adegquacy of the
management's  assessmenl  relating o
identifying IMS as the accounting acquirer
and treating the Company as a 'business' as
defined in IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations,

Verifying whether the identifiable assels
acquired and liabihibes assumed 1o the
merger and recognized in the financial
statements were, in fact, part of what was
acquired in the in the merger transaction
(i.e. excluding the effects of any separate
connected  transactions  or  evenis),
including assessing whether all such assets
and liabilitics (including any idemtifiable
assets  or  contingent  liabilities  nat
previously recognized by the accounting
acquireg and that may require recognition
as per IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinaiions')
have been duly recognized in the financial
statciments:
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Description of the Kev audit matier

How the matter was addressed in our andit

Reverse Merger (continued)

Since the merger transaction had a significant effect on
the financial statements as well as our overall audin
strategy. and also involved our significant judgements
relating 1o areas m the financial statemenis that involved
significant management judgement {(including, but not
limited to. those reguired in identifying the accounting
acquirer, and identifying the -assets acquired and
liabilities assumed and estimating their fair value), it was
determmined as a  matler  involving  significant sk,
requiring significant aoditor sttention. Further, il was
determined as a matter of most significance in our audit,
and hence as-a key audit matter, due to the nature and
extent of audit effort needed to address its inherent
complexities as well as due to its importance to intended
users' understanding of the financial stalements as a
whole, in particular, its materiality to the financial
slatements,

Assessing the appropriateness of the fair
value of the entifiable assets acguired and
liabilities assumed in the wmerger as
determined by management's expert by
evaluating the competence, capabilitics and
objectivity of the experi, oblaining an
understanding of the expert's work, and
evaluating the appropratencss of  that
expert's work as audit evidence;

Recalelating the amounts  of  bargam
purchase gain  and the consideration
deemed to be transferred by IMS, the
accounting acguirer, as  determined by
management;

Establishing  whether  the  financial
statements have been treated, and described
as such in notes thereto, as a conlinualion
of the financial statements of IMS, the
accounting acquirer, and consequently, if
the corresponding figures presented therein
are those of IMS;

Checking  whether  the  retrospective
adjustment made to the legal capital of IMS
to reflect the legal capital of the Company,
and the caleulation of the earnings per
share for the year are in line with the
specific requirements of TFRS 3 'Brusiness
Combinations', and

Assessing whether the disclosures made in
the linancial statements in respect of the
merger  transaction  are  understandable,
accurate and complete, in all material
respecis, m accordance  with  the
requirements of the applicable financial
reporting framework,
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
meluded in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s reports
thereon.

Owr opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form ol assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our résponsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
hased on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information. we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilitics of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such intermal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from matenial misstatement,
whether due o frauwd or error,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Cur ohjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and lo issue an auditor's report that
meludes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance. but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of the financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit, We also;

* ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and oblain avdit
evidence that is sulficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion. forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

«  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design andit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
cffectiveness of the Company’s internal control,
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Aunditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

*  Ewvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 1f
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, 1 such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, luture events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
48 4 going concern.

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements. including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
# manner thal achicves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable. related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are, therefore, the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

We would like you to note the following other matters which, we believe, are relevant to users'
understanding of the audit, our responsibilities or this report. Our opinion, however, is not modified in
respect of these matters:

{a) As stated in note 1.3 to the accompanying financial statements {and also referenced in the section
‘Emphasis of Matter’ above), the cormresponding figures presented in the accompanying financial
statements represent the pre-combination amounts recognized in the books of account of IMS for the
twelve-month period ended December 31, 2023 (with one exception). However, since IMS had a
financial year-end of June 30, financial statements for the said twelve-month period were not
previously  prepared. Consequently, the corresponding figures presented in the accompanying
financial statements have not been audited and are, therefore, not covered by our opinion expressed
in this report,
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Other Matters (continued)

{b) The annual financial statements of the Company (formerly 'EFG Hermes Pakistan Limited') for the
vear ended December 31, 2023 were audited by M/s. Riaz Ahmad, Sagib, Gohar & Co., Chartered
Accountants who, vide their report dated March 20, 2024, expressed an unmodified opinion on those
financial statements.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

{a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017
(XIX of 2007

{(b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement ol cash flows together with the notes
thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in
agreement with the books of account and returns;

{c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantces cxtended during the year were for the
purpose of the Company’s business;

{(d) no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushre Ordinance, 1980 (CXVITT of 1930);

{e) the Company was in compliance with the requirement of section 78 of the Securities Act, 2015 and
section 62 of the Futures Market Act. 2016, and the relevant requirements of the Securities Brokers
{Licencing and Operations) Regulations, 2016 as at the date on which the statement of financial
position was prepared; and

(f) The Company was in compliance with the relevant requirements of Futures Brokers (Licensing and
Operations Regulations), 2018 as at the date on which the statement of finaneial position was
prepared.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Mr. Muhammad
Waseem.

RAHMAN SARFARAY RAHIMMQBAL RAFIQ
Chartered Accountants

Karachi

Date: March 26, 2025
UDIN:  AR2024102135iNz5veAb

A member of

Russell Bedford International
A glibal network of independent aceountupcy firms,
busimess consoltants and speciadist legal advises,
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(Formerh EFS Harmes Pekistan Limited)

Statement of Financial Position

As at December 31, 2024

ASSETS

NOM-CURRENT ASSETS
Prupert¥ and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Intangible assets

Long term investment

Long term advances and deposits

CURRENT ASSETS

Short term investments

Trade debts

Receivables against margin financing

Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables
Short term loan

Cash and bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share capital and reserves

Authorized capital
200,000,000 ardinary shares of Rs.10/- each

lssued, subscribed and paid-up capital

Capital resefye
Discount on issue of shares

Revenue reserve
Unappraopriated profit

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Lease liability
Deferred liabilities

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Short term borrowings - secured

Trade and other pavables

Taxation - net

Unclaimed dividend

Accrued markup on short term borrawings
Current portion of lease liability

Contingencies and commitments

Total equity and liabilities

Mote

o b ohun b

14

11
13

14
14

15
16

15

19

(Restated)

December 31, December 31,

2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
123,001,088 22,656,021
67,043,100 19.933.745
7.246,677 5,008,570
30,127,296 30,127,296
13,955,005 6,593 405
241,373,166 87,319,037
280,373,189 441,989,715
735,039,582 551,990,331
640,570,348 402 392 261
1,833,114,089 A92 081,767
- 42 646,012
244,150,136 120,479 010
3,733,247,344 2,051,579 096
3,074,620,510 2,138,898,133
2,000,000,000 2,000,000,000
1,287,510,240 1,087,353,740
(622,379,278) (583,949, 230)
665,130,962 502,404,510
943,684,154 461,432 866
1,608,815,116 964,837,376
34,022,474 10,101,776
19,490,705 933 060
53,513,179 11,034,836
536,612,686 328,766, 362
1,684,289,982 782 458,119
43,237,969 26,338,676
11,019,239 -

17,165,702 18,919,858

19,966,637 | 6,542,306

2,312,292,215

3,974,620,510

The annexed nates from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.

ChiefExecutive Officer
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Chief Financial Officer
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1’! N TE JQ fvf,ﬂ Q K E T (Formerhy EFS Harmies Pakistan Limited)

EECURITIEE LTD

Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended December 31, 2024

Note
Operating revenue 20
Incoime fram investments - net 21
Administrative expenses )
Other expenses 23
Other income 24
Finance costs 25
Profit before levies and taxation
Levies 26
Profit before taxation
Taxation - net 27
Profit after taxation
Earning per share - basic and diluted 28

December 31,

2024
Rupees

996,212,817

240,613,705

1,236,826,522

(609,943,554)
(60,495,252)
112,534,436

{Restated)
December 31,
2023
Rupees

455,086,614

181,515,918

678,922,152

(134,128,087)

B36,602,532

(344,284,791)
{10,382,273)

17,801,184

544,794,065
(970,785)

543,823,280

(61,571,992)

299,736,652

(74,551,034

224,785,618
224,785.618
(21,490 634

482,251,288

203,294,984

4.06

187

The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements

xecutive Officer
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JrN TEJ'? M;ﬁ‘-_ J‘?KET (Formerhy EFS Harmies Pakistan Limited)

SEECURITIEE LT

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended December 31, 2024

(Restated)
December 31, December 31,
2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
Profit after taxation 482,251,288 203,294 984
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 482,251,288 203,294,984

The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these finanoial statements.

ChiefExecutive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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er TEJQ ﬁ/’f;’ﬂ JQKET {Farmerhs EBFS Harmes Pakistan Limited)

EECURITIEE LTD

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended December 31, 2024

Issued Capital reserve Revenue reserve
Subscribed and Discount on Unappropriated Total
paid up Issue of Shares profit
Share Capital
Balance as at December 31, 2022 502,404,510 258,137 882 761,542,392
{as previously reported)
Effect of restatement asa result of the reverse mermer 583,949,730 (hH3,949 230 - -
Balance as at December 31, 2022 (restated) 1,087,353,740 (583,549 230) 258,137,882 761,542 392
Total comprehensive income for the
vear ended December 31, 2023 :
- Profit after taxation 203,294,984 | 203,294,984
- Other comprehensive income | = | 1 <
203,204,954 203,294,984
Balance as at December 31, 2023 (restated) 1,087,353,740 (583,949,230) 461,432, 866 964,837,376
Trarsactions with owners
Fair value of the consideration effectively transterred
in the reverse merger 200,156,500 (38,430,048) - 161,726,452
Total comprehensive income for the
year enced Decernber 31, 2024
- Prafit after taxation - 482,251,288 482,251,288
- Other comprebensive incoma E - :
- - 482,251,288 482,251,288
Balance as at December 31, 2024 1,287,510,240 (622,379,278) 943,684,154  1,608,815,116

The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.

W

ChiefExecutive Officer
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Chief Financial Officer
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INTE RIVIAYCIARE - 56 b Pakistan Limited)

EECURITIEE LTD

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended December 31, 2024

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before levies and taxation

Adjustments for:

- Change in unrealized gain an remeasurement of short term
Investments - net

- Capital gain on sale of short term investments - net

- Depreciation on property and equipment

- Depreciation on nght-of-use-of-asset

- Amaortization of intangible assets

- Receivables and deposits written off

- Intangiole written off

- Provision far expected credit losses on trade debts

- (zain on disposal of property and equipment

- Bargain purchase gain on reverse merger

- Interest income on deposits with NCCPL

- Interest accrue on loan to related party

- Finance costs

- Property and equipment written off

Changes in working capital items

(Increase) / decrease in current assets

- Shart term investments - net

- Trade debts

- Receivables against margin financing

- Advances, deposits, prepayments and other recevabiles

Increase in current liabilities
- Trade and other payables

Income ta;x - net
Advance from employes )
Long term advances and deposits - net

Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property and equipment

Additions to right-of-use assets - initial direct cost

Loan disbursement made during the year to related parties
Loan repayment received during the year from related parties
Purchase of intangible assets

Cash and bank balances acquired In reverse merger

Interest income received on depasits with NCCPL

Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets

Met cash (used in) / generated from investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Fepayment of lease liability - Principal portion
Repayment of long term loan

Dividend paid

Loan recavered from a related party

Finance costs paid

Met cash used in financing activities

Mel decrease in cash and cash eguivalents

Cash and cash eguivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash eguivalents at the end of the year

Note

21

21
22
22
22
23
23
23
24
24
£4.1
241
25

25

December 31,
2024
Rupees

544,794,065

(59,802,524)

(170,603,926)
11,408,007
7,336,145
357,240
231,147
5,689,370
15,501,235
(119,773)
(25,737,911)
(61,168,064)
(15,560,970}
134,128,087

387,063,807

656,617,119
(187,730,830)
(188,419,564)

14 27

(633,538,302)
735,043,407

488,568,912

(28,664,389)
2,500,000
3,100,000

465,504,523

(10,755,356)

{876,400)

(237,000,000)
757,450

133,468,948
50,234,845
1,458,234

(62,712,279)

(16,224,671)
(325,000,000)
(27,885)
(20,000)
145,694,886)

486,967,442)

(84,175,198)
(208,287,352)

(292,462,550)

The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.

(Restated)
December 31,
2023
Rupees

2247785618

(24,273 560}

(142 164,721}
3,387,538
3,834,730

281,200
51,322

1,630,951
(27,867)

(8.826,252)

74,951 ._034
811,364

(90,344,261)
134,447,357

(137,764,635

176,541,430)
(266,416,514)
(407 465,863)

(883,188,442)

583,964,166
(164,782,919
55,625,934

(1,599,010
{110,755,995)

{4,925,883)
{4,937,675)
(30,000,000)
82,500,000
{2,500,000)

8,826,252
2,185,021

1,147,715

{2,186,118)

{67.565,708)
(69,751,826)
{(179,360,106)
(78,927,246)
(208,287 352)

Chieﬁ‘fxen:utive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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INTE R\ViAY <] (Formerly EF Hermes Pakistan Limitad)

Notes to the Financial Statements

SECURITIEES LTED

For the year ended December 31, 2024

1.1

12

13

Legal Status and Principal Activities

Intermarket Secunties Limited (formerly "EFG Hermes Pakistan Limited'} (the " Company" ) was originally incorporated
as a private imited company under the name 'Invest and Finance Securities (Private) Limited' on September 27,
1999, under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (subsequently repealed by the Companies Act, 2017 issued in May
2017).

On Movember 27, 2006, the Company was converted into a public unlisted company and, accordingly, renamed
Invest and Finance Securities Limited'. The Company was subsequently listed on Karachi Stock Exchange Limited
{now Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited) with effect from March 20, 2008,

In May 2017, the majority shareholding of the Company was acguired by EFG Hermes Brokerage Helding LLC, a
fareign entity based in Dubal, UAE. Following this change in ownership, the Company was renamed 'EFG Hermes
Pakistan Limited'.

As explained in note 1.3 below, with effect from July 01, 2024, EFG Hermes Pakistan Limited was merged with
Intermarket Securities Limited (IMS), a public unlisted company, pusuant 1o a Scheme of Arrangement ('the Merger
Scheme') sanctioned by the Honorabie High Court of Sindh on October 09, 2024 In accordance with the terms
of the Merger 5cheme, IMS was dissolved without winding up, and the name of the Company was changed frem
'EFG Hermes Pakistan Limited” to 'Intermarket Securities Limited'.

The principal activities of the Company are investments, share brokerage, Initial Public Offer (IPO) underwriting,
advisory and consultancy services. The registered office of the Company is situated at 5th Floor, Ext. Block, Bahria
Complex IV, Ch. Khalig-ur-Zaman Road, Clifton, Karachi, Pakistan.

The geographical location of Company's offices are as follows:

- Office # 139 and 140, 3rd Floor, Stock Exchange Building, Stock Exchange Read, Karach.

- Office Mo, 904, 9th Floor, Emerald Tower, Plot Mo, G-19, Block- 5, Clifton, Karachi,

- Office No.319, located on 65 Floor of Siddig Trade Centre, Bearing Plot No. 72, Situated At Main
Boulevard, Gulberg Lahore, Punjab, Pakistan,

- Dffice No.3L3, located On 3d Floor of Lahore Stock Exchange - South Tower, Situated At 19
Khayaban Aiwan-E-lgbal Road, Lahore, Paksitan.

- Office # 409, 4th Floor, Stock Exchange Building, Stock Exchange Road, Karachi.

- Office # 212 Znd Floor Balad Trade Centre Plot No. # 118 Block 3, EMCHS, Karachi.

- Piat # 38-A, Adjacent Genix Pharma, Korangi Creek, Karachi

- 11th Floor, M.M Towers, Property Mo. 28, Block K, M.M Alam Road, Gulberg lll, Lahore.

Reverse merger
Description of the merger scheme

During the year, the Company (formerly 'EFG Hermes Pakistan Limited') entered into a Scheme of Arrangement
{'the Merger Scheme’) with Intermarket Securiries Limited {IM5), a public unlisted company operating in the securities
brokerage sector, whereby, with effect from July 01, 2024, the entire business undertaking of IMS, including all
its assets and liabilities, were transterred to the Company in consideration for an issue of 108,735,374 ordinary
shares of the Company to the owners of IMS (based on the swap ratio of 2.16 ordinary shares of EFG Hermes
Fakistan Limited for each ordinary share of IMS). Additionally, per the Merger Scheme, which was duly sanctioned
by the Honourable High Court of Sindh {‘the Court’) on October 09, 2024, IMS was dissolved without winding up,
and the name of the surviving entity {L.e. the Company) was changed from 'EFG Hermes Pakistan Limited' to
'Intermarket Securities Limited'.

Primary reasons for the reverse merger

The reverse merger between EFG Hermes Pakistan Limited and Intermarket Securities Limited (IM5) aimed 1o enhance
business growth, operational efficiency, and market presence. It allowed for resource consolidation, cost synergies,
and improved shareholder value. Additionally, the merger enabled IMS to gain a listing on the Pakistan Stock
Exchange (PSX) without a separate IPO, providing greater access to capital markets and investor confidence.
Recognition of the merger transaction in the financial statements

In terms of the requirements of IFRS 3 "Business Combinations', the merger transaction has been identified as a
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‘reverse acquisition’ with IMS being identified as the "accounting dcguirer’ and EFG Hermes Pakistan Limited being
identified as the "accounting acquiree'. This is due to fact that the owners of IMS, as a group, have received the
largest portion of the voting rights in the combined entity, and also that the former mangement of IMS dominates
the seniar management of the combined entity,

In view of the above, these financial staterments have been treated as a continuation of the financlal statements of
M5, the accounting acquirer. Accordingly, the corresponding figures presented herein do not reflect the amounts
previously reported by EFG Hermes Pakistan Limited in its financial statements for the year ended December 31,
2023, Instead, they represent the pre-combination amounts of assets, liabilities; equity, income and expenses as
recognized in the books of account of IMS for the twelve-manth period ended December 31, 2023 (except for the
retrospective adjustment made to the legal capital of IMS to reflect the legal capital of EFG Hermes Pakistan Limited
-see note 14.2 .1 1o these financial statements).

As of July 01, 2024 {the effective date of the merger scheme), the amounts recognized for each major class of assets
acquired and liabilities assumed are as follows:

Carring Amount Fair Value and Fair Value
as at July 01, other as at
2024 Adjustment July 01, 2024

Assets
Property and equipment 37,796,270 22,504,876 0,201,146
Intangible assets 3,985,417 1,300,000 5285417
Investments 264,594 143 - 264,594,143
Long-term deposits 10,461,600 10,461,600
Taxation - net 4,737 583 4,737,583
Trade debts 10,819,656 10,819,656
Receivables against margin financing 49,758,523 49,758,523
Advances, deposits, prepayment and other receivables 164,521,703 164,521,703
Cash and bank balances 133,468 948 - 133,468,948

680,143,843 23,804,876 703,948,719
Liahilities o
Long term loan 325,000,000 - 325,000,000
Trade and other payables 192,685,514 125,877,058 166,808,456
Accrued markup 9,817,643 - 0.812,643
Deferrad tax liabilities . 3,816,133 3,816,133
Unclaimed dividend 11,047 124 . 11,047,124

538,545,281 {22,060,925) 516,484,356
Net assets acquired 141,598,562 187,464,363

Less: Fair value of the consideration deemed
to be transferred by IMS*

Bargain purchase gain**

(161,726,452)

25,737,911

* The fair value of the consideration deemed to be transferred by IMS is based on the fair value of EFG Hermes
Pakistan Limited as at September 30, 2023 {i.e., the date on which the swap ratio of 2.16 was worked out) as this
provides the most reliable measure. The said fair value was determined as the number of ordinary shares of EFG
Hermes Pakistan Limited outstanding before the merger (.e, 20,015,650 shares) times the weighted average quoted
market p;ice of Rs. 8.08 per share (being the average of price quatations for the one-manth period to September
30, 2023),

** The bargain purchase gain, reported in note 24 1o these financial statements ('Other income’), is mainly attributable
1o the fair value and other adjustments made to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed,

Cther reguisite information

(it The revenue and profit or loss of EFG Hermes Pakistan Limited, the accounting acguiree, since July 01, 2024
(the effective date of the merger) included In the statement of profit or loss for the year are as follows:
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Rupees

Operaling revenues 132,224,223
Income from investments - net 23,304,167
155,528,390

Administrative expenses {111,580,484)
Other expense (168,303)
Other income 11,927,495
55,707,098

Finance costs (31,902,189)
Profit before levies and taxation 23,804,909

{1} The revenue and profit or loss of the combined entity for the year, as though the effective date of the merger
had been as of the beginning of the year (I.e., lanuary 01, 2024), would have been as follows:

Rupees

Operating revenues 1,129,166,287
Income fram investrments - net 255,352,419
1.384,518,706

Administrative expenses (722,339,060)
Other experise (60,549,958)
Other income 127,380,724
729,010,412

Finance costs (172,764,957)
Prafit before levies and taxation 555,245,455_

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
2.1 Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

Internationa! Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standard Board (|ASE)
as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

Provisions of, and directives, issued under the Companies Act, 2017

Where the provisions of, and directives issued under, the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS, provisions of,
and directives, issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

2.2 Basis of measurement of items in the financial statements

ltems in these financial statements have been measured at their historical cost, except for Short term investments
in guoted eguity securities which are carried at fair value,

2.3 Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in these financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary ecanomic envirenment
in which the Company operates. These financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees which is the Company's
functional and presentation currency

2.4 Use of estimates and judgments

In preparation of these financial statements, management has made judgements and estimates that affect the

application of the Company's accounting pelicies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. Actual results may ditfer from these estimates.
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Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongaing basis, Revisions to estimates are recognised
prospectively.

{a) Judgements

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on
the ameounts recognised in these financial statements is included in the following notes:

Area of

Judgement Brief description of the judgement applied

significant judgment is exercised in accounting for the reverse takeover transaction
under IFRS 3 Business Combinations. Key judgments included identifying the accounting
acguirer (IMSY, determining whether the transaction gualifies as a business combination,
measuring fair values of consideration and net assets acguired, recognizing a bargain
purchase gain, and appropriately presenting financial statements.

Reverse merger

ib) Assumptions and other major sources of estimation uncertainty

There are no assumptions and estimation uncertainties at the reporting date that have a significant risk of
resulting in @ material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the next financial year,

2.5 MNew accounting pronouncements
2.5.1 Amendments to existing standards that became effective during the year

The following new or amended standards and interpretations became effective during the year. However, the same
are not considered to be relevant to the Company's tinandial staterments:

- Supplier Finance Arrangements (Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7)

- Lease Liability in 2 Sale and Leaseback (Amendments to IFRS 16)
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Nan-Current {Amendments to 1A5 1)
- Mon-current Liabilities with Covenants {Amendments to 1AS 1)

2.5.2 Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that
are not yet effective

The following new IFRSs or amendments thereto will be effective for the annual reporting periods beginning an
or after the dates specifiied below:

(a) Lack of Exchangeability (Amendment to IAS 21) - On August 15, 2023, the |ASE issued Lack of Exchangeability
which amended 145 21 'The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates’. The amendments arose as a result
of a submission received by the IFRS Interpretations Committee about the determination of the exchange rate
when there is a long-term lack of exchangeability, 125 21, prior to the amendments, did not include explicit
requirements for the determination of the exchange rate when a currency is not exchangeable into another
currency, which led to diversity in practice. The amendments introduce requirements to assess when a currency
15 exchangeable into another currency and when it is not. The amendments require an entity 1o estimate the
spot exchange rate when it concludes that a currency is not exchangeable into another currency.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning an or after January 01, 2025, However,
the application of the amendments are not ikely to affect the Company's financial statements for future reporting
periods,

{b) IFRS 18 'Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements' - IFR5 18, which was published by the 1ASE
on April 09, 2024, sets out significant new requirements for how financial statements are presented, with
particular focus on

- The statement of profit or loss, including requirements for mandatory sub-totals to be presented. IFRS 18
introduces requirements for items of income and expense to be classified into one of five categories in the
statement of profit or loss. This classification results in certain sub-totals being presented, such as the sum
of all items of income and expense in the operating category comprising the new mandatory "operating
prafit or loss” sub-total
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- Aggregation and disaggregation of information, Including the intraduction of overall principles for how
infarmation should be aggregated and disaggregated in financial statements.

Disclosures related to management-defined performance measures (MPMs), which are measures of financial
performance based on a total or sub-total required by IFRS Accounting Standards with adjustments made
{e.g, 'adjusted profit or less'), Entities will be required to disclose MPMs in the financial statements with
disclasures, including reconciliations of MPMs 1o the nearest total or sub-total calculated in accordance with
IFRS Accounting Standards.

The aim of the 1ASE in publishing IFRS 18 is to improve comparability and transparency of companies’ performance
reporting. [FRS 18 has alse resulted in narrow changes to the statement of cash flows.

IFRS 18 replaces |1AS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ and is effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after January 01, 2027. However, the standard is yet to be notified by the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakislan for adoption by companies in Pakistan. As of the reporting date, the Company
was yet in the process of evaluating the potential impact of the amendments on its financial statements for
future reparting periods.

IFRS 19 'Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures' - On May 029, 2024, the [ASE issued IFRS
19, Stakeholders have asked the |ASE to permit @ subsidiary reparting to a parent applying IFRS Accounting
Standards in its consalidated financial statements ta apply IFRS Accounting Standards with reduced disclosure
requirements in its own financial statements. Considering this feedback, the 1A5B issued IFRS 19, which permits
eligible subsidiaries to apply reduced disclosure requirements while applying the recognition, measurement and
presentation reguirements in IFRS Accounting Standards

The eligibility criteria for an entity to apply IFRS 19 are:
- The entity s a subsidiary (as defined in Appendix & of IFRS 10 ‘Consolidated Financial Statements');
The entity does not have public accountability; and

- The entity has an ultimate or intermediate parent that produces consolidated financial statements available
tor public use that comply with IFRS Acceunting Standards.

An entity has public accountability if

- Its. debt or eguity instruments are traded in a public market or it is in the process of issuing such instruments
for trading in a public market; or

- It holds assets in a fiduciary capacity for a broad group of cutsiders as one of its primary businesses autsiders
as one of its primary businesses.

IFRS 19 is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 01, 2027, However, the standard
is yet to be notified by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan for adoption by companies in
Pakistan. The application of the standard is not likely to affect the financial statements of the Caompany for
future reporting periods.

{d) Amendments to the Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments (Amendments to IFRS

9 and IFRS 7) — In respanse to matters that had been raised to the IFRS Interpretations Committee as well as
matters that arose during the post-implementation review of classification and measurement requirements of
IFR5 B 'Finandial Instruments’, in May 2024, the IASE issued 'Armendrments to the Classification and Measurement
of Financial Instruments'. The amendments medify the following requirements in IFRS 9 and IFRS 7:

Derecognition of financial liabilities

- Derecognition of financial liabilities settled through electronic transfers.

Classification of financial assets

- Elements of interest in a basic lending arrangement {the solely payments of principle and interest assessment
~'SPPI test’)

Confractual terms that change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows

Financial assets with non-recourse features
Investments in contractually linked instruments.
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Disclosures
Investments in equity instruments designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
- Contractual terms that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows.

The amendments may significantly affect how entities account for the derecognition of financial liabilities and
how financial assets are classified, Further, the amendments permit an entity to early adopt only the amendments
related to the classification of financial assets and the related disclosures and apply the remaining amendments
later.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 01, 2026. However,
the application of the amendments are not likely to affect the Company's financial stalements for future
reporting periods,

Annual Improvements to IFRS Accounting Standards (Volume 11) - Issued in July 2024, Annual Improvements
are limited to changes that either clarify the wording in an IFRS Accounting Standard, or correct relatively minar
unintended consequences, oversights or conflicts between requirements of the Accounting Standards, The
proposed improvements are packaged together in one document. This cycle of annual improvements addresses
the following:

Hedge Accounting by a First-time Adopter (Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International
Financial Reporting Standards)

Disclosure of Deferred Difference between Fair Value and Transaction Price {&mendments to Guidance on
implermenting IFRS 7)

- Gain or Loss on Derecognition tAmendments to IFRS 7)

- Introduction and Credit Risk Disclosures (Amendments to Guidance on implementing IFRS 7)
- Derecognition of Lease Liabilities (Amendments to IFRS 9)

- Transaction Price (Amendments to IFRS 9)

- Determination of a ‘De Facto Agent’ (Amendments to IFR5 10}

- Cost Method (Amendments to 1AS 7)

The amendments are effective for annual reparting periods beginning on or after January 01, 2026, However,
the application of the amendments are not likely to affect the Company's financial statements for future
reporting periads.

Contracts Referencing Nature-dependent Electricity (previously Power Purchase Agreements)
{Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7)

On December 18, 2024, the |ASE issued amendments to improve the reporting by companies of the financial
effects of nature-dependent electricity contracts that are often structured as power purchase agreements (FPAs),
Mature-dependent electricity contracts assist companies to secure their electricity supply from wind and solar
power sources. Since the amaunt of electricity generated under these contracts may vary based on uncontroliable
factors related to weather conditions, current accounting requirements may not adequately capiure how these
contracts affect a company’s performance. In response, the IASE has made targeted amendments to IFRS 9
‘Financial Instruments” and IFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures' to improve the disclosure of these contracts
in the financial statements.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 01, 2026, However,
the application of the amendments are not likely to affect the Company's financial statements for future
reporting periods.

IFRS 17 'Insurance Contracts'

IFRS 17 establishes the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of insurance
contracts within the scope of the standard, The objective of IFRS 17 is to ensure that an entity provides relevant
information that faithfully represents those contracts. This information gives a basis for users of financial
statements to assess the effect that insurance contracts have on the entity’s financial position, financial
performance and cash flows.

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan, vide its 5.R.0, 1715(1/2023 dated November 21, 2023,
has directed that IFRS 17 shall be followed in the preparation of the financial staterments for the annual reporting
periods beginning an or after January 01, 2026 by companies engaged in insurance / takaful and re-insurance
/ re-takaful business. The application of the standard is not likely to affect the Company's financial statements
for future reporting periods.
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(h) Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture [Amendments to IFRS
10 and 145 28) - The amendments modify the accounting treatment en loss of control of business or assets,
The amendments also introduce new accounting tor less frequent transaction that involves neither cost nor
full step-up of certain rétained interests in assets that are not businesses. The effective date for these amendments
has been deferred indefinitely until the completion of a broader review.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The material accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented .

Property and equipment
Cwhned

These are stated at cost less accumulated deprecation and impairment losses, if any. Cost include expenditures that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset

Subsequent costs are included in the carrying amount as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benetits associated with the iterm will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognized. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of
profit or loss during the year in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is charged to statement of profit or loss applying the reducing balance method at the rates specified
in note 4, Depreciation is charged when the asset is available for use till the asset is disposed off, Further, when
the written down value of the item of assets falls below Rs. 25,000 the same is charged directly to the statement
of profit or loss

An itern of property and eguipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amaunt of the asset} is included in the statement of profit ar loss in
the year in which the asset is derecognized.

The assets® residual values, depreciation methods and usetul lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at-each
financial year end. The Company's estimate of residual value of property and equipment as at December 31, 2024
did not require any adjustment

Intangible assets

Computer software

These are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, it any. Amortization s computed
using the reducing balance method over assets estimated useful life at the rates stated in note 5.1, after taking into
accounts residual value, if any. The residual values, useful life and amortization methads are reviewed and adjusted,
if appropriate, at each reporting date.

Amaortization is charged from the date the assets are put to use while no amortization is charged after the date
when the assets are disposed off.

Gain and losses on disposal of such assets, if any, are included in the statement of profit or loss.

Membership cards and privileges (TREC)

These are stated at cost less impairment, it any. The carrying amount is reviewed at each reporting date to assess
whether it is in excess of its recoverable amount, and where the carrying value exceeds estimated recoverable
amount, it is written down to its estimated recoverable amount,

Financial instruments

Initial recognition, classification and measurement

The Company recognizes a financal asset when and only when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument evidencing imvestment.

Regular way purchase of investments are recognized using settlement date accounting l.e: on the date on which
settlement of the purchase transaction takes place. '
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finan[ial assets measured at amortized cost; o
f@nanr_!ai assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVQCI; and
financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets measured at amortized cost

A fhancial asset is measured at amortized cost if it s held within business model whose ohjective is to hoild
assets to collect contractual cash 7ows, and its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on principal amount outstanding.

Such financial assets are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue thereof,

Financial assets at FVOC|

& financial asset is classified as at fair value through other comprehensive income when it is held within a
business model whose ohjective is achieved by both cellecting contractual cash flows and selling financlal assets
and its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash Tows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding,

Such financial assets are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue thereof,
Financial assets at FVTPL

A financial asset shall be measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortised cost
or at fair value through other comprehensive income, as aforesaid. However, for an investment in eguity
instrument which is not held for trading, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value of the investment.

Such financial assets are initially measured at fair value,

3.3.2 Subsequent measurement

(a)

(b)

i)

Financial assets measured at amartized cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost (determined using the effective interest method) less
accumulated impairment losses,

Interest / markup income, foreion exchange gains and losses and impairment losses arising from such financial
assels are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial assets at FVOCI
These are subsequently measured at fair value less accumulated impairment |osses.

& gain or loss on a financial assel measured at fair value through other cemprehensive income is recognised
in other comprehensive income, except for impairment gains or losses and foreign exchange gains and losses,
until the financial assel 15 derecognised ar reclassified. When the financial asset is derecognised the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised In other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss as
a reclassification adjustment. interest 1s calculated using the effective interest method and is recognised in profit
or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL
These assets are subsequently measurad at fair value,

Met gains or losses arising from remeasurement of such financial assets as well as any interest income accruing
thereon are recognized in the statement of prafit ar lass. However, for an investrment in equity instrument which
is not held for trading and for which the Company has made an irrevocable election to present in other
comprenensive income subsegquent changes in the fair value of the investment, such gains or losses are recognized
in gther comprehensive income. Further, when such investiment is disposed off, the cumulative gain or loss
praviously recognised in ather comprahensive income is not reclassified from equity to profit or loss,

3.3.3  Impairment

The Company recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses in respect of financial assets measured at
amaortised cost.
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For trade debts and receivables from margin financing, the Company apphes the IFRS 9 "Simplified Approach’ to
measuring expected cradit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance.

For other financial assets, the Company applies the IFRS 9 'General Approach’ to measuring expected credit losses
whereby the Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the ifetime
expected credit losses If the credit risk on that finandal instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.
However, if, at the reporting date, the credit risk on a finandial instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to
14-month expected credit losses.

The Company measures expected credit losses on financial assets in a way that reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amaunt, time value of money and reasonable and supportable information at the reparting date abaut
the past events, current conditions and forecast of future economic conditions. The Company recognises in profit
or loss, as an impairment loss, the amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss
allowwance at the reporting date.

Loss allowances for financlal assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of
the assets

De-recognition

Financial assets are derecognized when the rights 1o receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
have been transterred and the Company has transferred substantially ali risks and rewards of ownership.

The Company directly reduces the gross carrying amount of a financial asset when the Company has no reasonable
expectations of recovering the financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
avent.

Financial liabilities

Fingncial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or 'at fair value through profit or loss' (FVTPL).
A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as
such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including
any interest expense, are recognized in the statement of profit or loss,

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Interest
expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Any gain or loss
on de-recognition is also recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Financeal liabilities are derecognized when the contractual ebligations are discharged or cancelled or have expired
or when the financial liability's cash flows have been substantially modified.

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset when the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends to
settle either on a net basis or to realise the asset and setlle liahility simultanecusly.

Trade debts and receivables against margin financing

These ate carried at their transaction price less any allowance for lifetime expected credit losses, & receivable is
recognized on the settlement date as this is the point in time that the payment of the consideration by the customer
becomes due.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried In the statement of financial position at amortized cost. For the purpase of
thie statement cash flows cash and cash equivalents comprise bank balances and short term borrowings.

Staff retirement benefits - Defined contribution plan

& defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fiked contributiens inta
a separate fund and will have no legal or canstructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not
hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods. As
a consequence, actuarial risk (that benefits will be less than expected} and investment risk (that assets will be
insufficient to meet expected benefits) fall, in substance, on the employee
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The Company operates a defined contribution plan i.e. recognized provident fund (“the Fund”) for all of its eligible
employees in accordance with trust deed and rules made thereunder. Monthly contributions at the rate 10.00%
of basic salary are made to the Fund by the Company and the employees

When an employee has rendered service to the Company during a period, the Company recognisas the contribution
payable to a defined contribution plan in exchange for that service as an expense in profit or loss and as a liability
in the statement of financial posttion (accrued expense), after deducting any contribution already paid. If the
contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for service before the end of the reporting period, the
Company recognises that excess as an asset (prepaid expensel to the extent that the prepayment will lead to, for
example, a reduction in future payments ar.a cash refund.

When contributions 1o a defined contribution plan are not expected to be settled wholly before twelve months after
the end of the annual reporting period in which the employees render the related service, they are discounted using
the discount rate determined by referance to market yields at the end of the reporting peried an high gquality
corporate bonds (or when there is no deep market in such bonds, the government bonds) having term consistent
with the estimated term of the post-employment benefit cbligations.

Levies and Taxation
Levies

A lewy is an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits imposed by the government that does not meet
the definition of income tax provided in the International Accounting Standard (|AS) 12 'Income Taxes' because it
is not based on taxable profit,

In these financial staterments, levy includes minimum tax under section 113 or other sections of Income tax ordinance,
Income tax under final tax regime, workers' welfare fund expense and workers' profit participation. The comresponding
effect of levy other than worker's welfare fund expense and warkers' profit participation, advance tax paid has been
netted off and the net position Is shown in the statement of financial position.

Current tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reparting period. Management periodically evaluates pasitions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax requlation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate
on the basis of amounts axpectad to be paid 1o the tax authorties,

Deferred tax

Deferred tax s provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. However, deferrad taxes are liabilities
are not recognised if they arise fram the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred tax are not accounted for if thay
arise from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that, at
the time of the transactian, affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax is measured using
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting peried and are
expacted to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax |osses and credits only if it
is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and unused tax losses
and credits. Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recagnised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Significant judgment is required in determining the income tax expenses and carresponding provision for tax, There
are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain as these matters are
being contested at various legal forums. The Company recognizes liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the current and deferred tax assets and habilities
in the period In which such determination is made

Further, the carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reparting date and is adjusted to reflect the
current assessiment of future taxable profits. If required, carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits to allow the benefit of part or all of that recognised
deferred tax asset to be utibsed. Any such reduction 1s reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficent
taxable profit will be available,
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Deferred tax asseis and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable nght to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax
liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable night to offset and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the hability simultanecusly,

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions

A provision is recagnised in the statement of financial pesition when the Company has a legal or constructive
oblgation as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying ecanamic benefits
will be reguired to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligaton. Provisions
are not recegnised for future operating losses,

Contingent liabilities

A contingent hiability is disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation as a result of past events, whose
existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence, of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Company; or the Company has-a present legal or constructive obligation that arises
from past events, but it is not probable that an cutflows of resources embaodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation, or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Operating revenue
Revenue from trading activities - brokerage commission

Commission revenue arising from sales / purchase of securities on client's behalf is recognized on the date of
settlement of transaction by the clearing house.

Revenue from advisary and consultancy services
Revenue is recognized when the performance obligation is satisfied i.e. when services are provided

The Company does not expect to have contracts where the period between the senvices to the customer and payrment
by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, the Company does not adjust any of the transaction prices
for the time value of money.

Dividend income

Dividends received from investments measured at fair value through profit or loss and at fair value through other
comprehensive income are recognized in the statement of profit or loss when the right to receive payment is
established, i1 15 probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company and
the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably. This applies even if they are paid cut of pre-acquisition profits,
unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of a part of the cost of an investment, In this case, dividend is
recognized In other comprehensive income if it relates to an investment measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income,

Mark up / Interest income

Mark-up / interest income is recognized on a time propartion basis on the principal amount outstanding and at the
rate applicable,
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PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - owned assets
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leasehold  Leasehold  Furniture &  Office  Vehicles Computer  Office
land  improvement  fixtwre  eguipment premises
As at December 31, 2002 (Rupees)
Cost b,903.077 14,040 b5 370,603 4156400 7605039 10,184310 12674940 55,945,060
Accumulzted depreciation - 130016420 (150073 (L06007S (554TAT R013719) (79668640 (32.73%.801)
Net book value 8,903,077 1,033,043 0528 3096327 2057627 518051 &£708076 23705259
For the year ended Decernber 31, 2043
Dpening net book value b,903,077 1,039.044 054 3005327 2057827 S80%5R1  47080%e 23205259
Additions during the pear . 2,000,000 43250 1.294.300 4500 1146833 . 4,975,843
[nsposats durmg the year
- Cost (1455 47| (164,638 (28544959 [1,982,075) - i, 456, 85491
< Arcumulated deprecation 1,287 788 1,215 1888017 1,190,857 4,358,277
(167 858) - (1234230 (1003082 {791,218 - (2,087.582)
Depreciation for the year - (626,242| (24056 (7SRRI (2744460 (1A1908) (4680200 (3387539
Closing net book value 6,903,077 7.204.842 B9 3RS 121959 3MT04 &M0056 22656001
As 3t December 31, 2023
Cost 6903077 14585038 413853 S2BE06R 5192040 9350068 12674940 54414084
Accumulated depreciation - N2340038 (174131 (1394547 (39724410 (5.441%04) (84348341 (317598063
Net book value 6,903,077 2.144.04] 13978 JE9LE 1, 195%9 1917104 &LMO056 22656021
For tha year ended Decamber 31, 2024
Opening net oak valie 6,903,077 2,144,947 139.731 3891521 1219599 3917104 4740056 27 656,021
Addtions
- Acauitions through reyerse merger - Bne4n 40207351 210000 24451004 16000000 60,301,146
e - 6190 2%SH16 20001 LISLIED 4780512 2790389
13732310 BO2&5AT 2940001 25602164 B3BO0512 113,091,533
Disposals durnng the year L e o
-Cosl (B80,757)  (149.238)  (224.698) (1,679,000) (1,657,512 - |4,591,205)
- Arcumuiated depreciation B09,770 72,993 91,946 1,148763 1,129,267 - 3,252,744
(70,887) (16,2400  (132752)  (530,237)  (528,245) - (1,338,461)
Depreciation for the year . (726,982)  (683,029)  (663,157)  (441.B85) (5,025657) (3,867.297) (11,408,007)
Closing net book value 6,903,077 1486973 13212764 10,022,159 3187478 23965366 64263271 123,001,088
As at December 31, 2024
Cost 6,803,077 13704281 13006026 11987917 6453041 33303720 76565451 162014414
Arcumulated dapreciation - [12,257.308)  (784.162) (1,965758) (3.265563) (9,338,354) (12,302,181) (39,913,326
Net book value 6,903,077 14460973 13212764 10,022,159 3187478 23965366 64,263,271 123,001,088
Denreoation rate (per annum| 3% 10% 0% 20% 0% 10%
(Restated)
2024 2023
5. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS Note Rupees Rupees
Opening net book value 19,933,745 -
Add: Additions {including initial direct costs) 54,445,500 23,768,475
74,379,245 23,768,475
Less: Depraciation charged during the year 22 (7,336,145) (3,834,730
Closing net book value 67,043,100 19,933,745
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Gross carrying amounts

Cost

Opening balance
Addition during the year
Closing balance

dccumulated depreciation
Cpening balance
Depreciation for the year
Closing balance

Net book value

Depreciation rate (per annum)

Mote

(Restated)
2024 2023
Rupees Rupees

23,768,475 -
54,445,500 23,768,475
78,213,975 23,768,475

3.834,730 -
7,336,145 3,834,730
11,170,875 3,834,730
67,043,100 19,933,745
20%

20%

This represents Company's right to use certain vehicles, held by it under lease arrangements, The principal
terms and conditions of the said arrangements are as follows:

Initial | Estimated lease
Lease Lease | Availability | term (as on the
Name of Vehicles Lessor Name | Agreement | Commencement Cuntracmthz of Extension |  pate of
Date Date TE"L::f Option? | Commencement
e of the lease)
Toyaota Yaris First Habib | Ob-Dec-2022 | Ob-Dec-2022 3 years Mo 2.5 Years
Revo Modaraba | 0B-Aug-2024 | Ob-Aug-2024| 4 years Mo 4 years
MG HS 31-May-2023 | 31-May-2023| 4 years Mo 4 Years
Sazgar Haval 31-May-2023 | 31-May-2023| 4 years No 4 Years
Haonda City 30-May-2024 | 30-May-2024| 4 years Mo 4 Years
Tucson 04-5ep-2024 | 04-Sep-2024| 4 years Mo 4 years
swift CAR-493 15 Bank Ltd. | 06-5ep-2024 | 06-Sep-2024| 4 years Mo 4 years
Elantra 20-5ep-2024 | 20-5ep-2024| 4 years Mo 4 years
Honda City 30-May-2024 | 30-May-2024| 4 years Mo 4 Years
Swift-B2ZU-741 04-Sep-2024 | 04-Sep-2024| 4 years Mo 4 years
Switt-CabD-081 04-52p-2024 | 04-Sep-2024| 4 years Mo 4 years
(Restated)
INTANGIBLE ASSETS 2024 2023
Mote Rupees Rupees
Trading Rights Entitlemnent (TRE) Certificate
- Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (PSX) 2,500,000 2,500,000
- Pakistan Mercantile Exchange Limited (PMEX] 2,500,000 2,500,000
6.1 5,000,000 5,000,000
Computer software 6.2 2,246,677 3,008,570
7,246,677 8,008,570
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Trading Right Entitlement Certificate (TREC)

Cost

Upening balance

Acquisition through reverse merger
Wirite off during the year

Accumulated impairment

{Restated)
2024 2023
Mote Rupees Rupees
6,394,750 6,394,750
5,000,000 -
6.1.1 (5.000,000) =
6,394,750 6,394,750
(1,394,750) (1,394,750)
6.1.2 5,000,000 5,000,000

As a consequence of the reverse merger, the TREC of PSX and PMEX, as previously held by IMS, have been surrenderad.

PSX vide natice no, PSX/N - 225 dated February 16, 2021 have notified the national value of a Trading Right

Entitlerment Certificate amounting to Rs. 2.5 million
Computer software

Cost
Accumulated amortization

Met book value
hovement for the year
Opening net book value
Additions

- acguisition throwugh reverse merger
- Others

Write off during the year

- Cost
- Accumulated amartization

Amortization for the year
Closing net book value

LONG TERM INVESTMENT - unguoted

Investrnent in shared of Coastal Company Limited

2,785,417 5,204,409
(538,740) (Z,195,839)
2,246,677 3.008,570
3,008,570 789,770

285,417 -
- 2,500,000
285,417 2,500,000

(2,704,409) -

2,015,039

(689,370) -
27 (357,940) (281,200)
2,246,677 3.008,570
7.1 30,127,296 30,127,296

This represents shares of Coastal Company Limited which were acquired when the collateral relating to short term
loan amounting to Rs. 36 million was realized in the form of shares of this MBFC. Shares are in the name of the
then Director and not in Cmmdpany's name in accordance to NBFC Rules 2003, An agreerment was made between

director and the Campany un

er which the procesds from sale of investment including gain/loss) would be rendered

back to Company. Shares are blocked but arrangement would be made for conversion into marketable lot and
disposal in accordance to NEFC Rules 2003 as soon as economic condition of the above NBFC improves,

LONG TERM ADVAMNCES AND DEPODSITS

Deposit placed with

- Central Depository Company - Basic depasit

- Mational Clearing Company of Pakistan - Basic deposit
- Mational Clearing Company of Pakistan - Future

- Mational Clearing Company of Pakistan - Reg

- Mational Clearing Company of Pakistan - SLB

- Pakistan Stock Exchange - Base minimum capital

- Pakistan Mercantile Exchange Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

{Restated)
2024 2023
Mote Rupees Rupees
250,000 100,000
400,000 200,000
2,000,000 1,000,000
400,000 200,000
- 100,000
4,225,000 -
750,000 750,000
8,025,000 2,350,000
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8.1

9.1

EECURITIEE LTD

Advances

Mote

- Pakistan Mercantile Exchange Limited (PMEX) 8.1

Security deposits

- Deposits against leased office premises

- CHhers

(Restated)
2024 2023

Rupees Rupees
2,500,000 2,500,000
3,390,705 1,704,105
39,300 39,300
3,430,005 1,743,405
13,955,005 6,593,405

This represent an advance made (o Pakislan Mercantile Exchange Limiled (PMEX) for acquiring an office space at

MCEL Project.

SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

At fair value through profit or loss
- Quoted eguity securities
- Units of mutual funds

A1 amortized cost
- Investment in T-Bill

MNote

9.1

8.2

Investment in quoted equity securities

{Restated)
December 31, December 31,
2024 2023
2,000
60 .
- 2,700,000
200 200,000
26,507 36,507
301 .
- 50,000
- 186,000
- 5,000
- 10,000
G37 537
- 250
2,430 -
- 2,833.003
- 145,000
Cab .
- 149,500
15,000 -
- 823
- 16,000
10,000 10,000
7,000 -
- 23772705
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Name of Investee

Abbatt Laboratories (Pakistan) Limited
Adarmjee Insurance Company Limited
Agritech Limited

Air Link Communication Lirmnited

Al Shaheer Corporation Limited
Avanceon Limited

Baluchistan Wheels Limited

Clover Pakistan Limited

Descon Cxychem Limited

Dewan Farcogue Mators Limited
Dewan Salman Fiore Limited - Freeze
Fauji Cerment Compary Limited

Fawji Fartilizer Company Limited

Fauji Foods Limited

Ferozsons Laboratories Limited
Ghandhara Industries Limited
Gharibwal Cement Limite
Glaxosmithkline Pakistan Limited
Habib Bank Limited

Igi Holdings Limitad

Indus Motor Company Lirmited

15 Bank Lirmited

k.-Electric Limited

Ksb Pumps Company Limited

(Restated)
2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
121,840,657 441,937,695
62,098 52,016
121,902,755 441,989,715
158,470,434 -
280,373,189 441,989,715
(Restated)
December 31, December 31,
2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
2475720
3,447 .
- 36,774,000
44,000 12,152,000
278,183 453,052
24121 :
- 9,774,500
4,363,140
113,000
. 143,600
473 473
- 4730
BG0,158 -
- 31,559,653
- 31,9492 800
331,766 -
- 4,332,510
5,953,650 -
- 91,221
: 1,765,600
21,296,000 11,995,200
B3,420 -
- 125,044,428
1,518,800 -
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EECURITIEE LTD

(Restated)
(Restated) December 31, December 31,
December 31, December 31, Name of Investee 2024 2023

2024 2023 Rupees Rupees
. 10,000 Lotte Chemical Pakistan Lirnited - 260,900
245 794 - Lse Capital Limited 1,582,146 -
842,811 - Lse Ventures Limited B,554.532 -
. 1.010 Lucky Cerment Limited . 794,850
6,912 - Mari Petroleum Company Limited 4,973,944 -
23,208 1,385 Meezan Bank Limited 5615156 225,097
- 102,000 Marit Packaging Limited - 1,260,720
75,000 - Mirpurkhas Sugar Mills Limited 2,265,750 -
5,000 20,661 Mational Refinery Limited 1,547 200 6,634,857
5,000 - Mimir Industrial Chermicals Limited 720,000 .
233 153,283 Oil & Gas Development Company Limited 52,952 17,236,673
500 500 Pakistan Capital Market Fund - -
27,000 L0000 Pakistan Faper Products Limited 4,047,300 2,724,500
2,000 15,000 Pakistan Petroleurn Limited 407100 1,725,450
1,047 & 502,047 Pakistan Refinery Limited 46,403 131,414,752
2,500 1,674 Fakistan State Cil Company Limited 1,101,725 189,787
1,953,572 350,619 Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited 54,211,623 3,537,746
500 500 Paramaount Sginning Mills Limited 2,275 1,00
1,000 1,000 Southern Electric Power Company Limited - Freeze 2,210
- 646 Sui Morthern Gas Pipelines Limited - 47,494
- 186 Systems Limited - 78,782
45,485 Tarig Glass Industries Ltd - 4,934 644
- 2,500 Thatta Cemient Company Limited - 45,350
29,274 - Thie Hub Pawer Company Limited 3831674 -
. 23,000 Tri~5tar Power Limited - 237820
318 318 Zeal Pak Cement Factory Limited - Fraeze 140 140
3,305,847 35,400,549 121,840,656 441,937,699

89.1.1

The number and fair value of securities pledged with PSX and NCCPL are as follows:

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Number of Fair Value Mumber of Fair Valiue
securities securties
(Rupees) (Rupees)
Clents 34,904,780 1,556,592,082 51,764,332 1,089.615,177
Brokerage House 2,744,557 64,603,199 9,339,319 gz 083,308
37,649,337 1,621,195,281 61,102,651 1,191,698,485
9.1.2 The number and fair value of securities pledged with financial institutions are as follows:
December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Number of Fair Value Mumber of Fair Value
securities seCurities
{Rupees) (Rupees)
Clients 15,829,820 1,139,077.514 9,695,798 364,895,349
Brokerage House 544,200 55,159,182 15099572 247 872,096
16,374,020 1,194,236,696 24,795 370 B12,767 445

9.2 Investment in T-Bills

due to matureon December 11, 2025

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

This represents a T-Bills placed with M/s. Habib Bank Limited. It carries markup at a rate of 12.01% paand is

23



INTE R \%rAV:d 4l

EECURITIEE LTD

(Restated)
10.  TRADE DEBTS 2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees
Gross receivables
Equity brokerage 101 754,014,284 555,463,798
Advisory and consultancy fees 203,400 203,400
754,217,684 555,667,198
Less: Provision for expected credit losses 10.2 (19,178,102) (3,676,867)
735,039,582 551,990,331

10.1  Trade debts - Equity brokerage

10.1.1 Trade debts includes Rs, 117.10 million (2023: Rs. 105.94 million} due from related parties. The maximum

aggregate amount outstanding during the year from such parties {with reference to month-end balances)
armounted to Rs. 149,54 million (2023: Rs. 275.017 million).

10.1.2 The Company holds capital securities having fair value of Rs. 9,144 94 millien (2023: Rs. 2,456 61 million)
owned by its clients including related parties, as collaterals against trade debts.

(Restated)
i 2024 2023
10.2 Provision for expected credit losses Note Rupees Rupees
Balance at the beginning of the year 3,676,867 2,045,818
Charged during the year 23 15,501,235 1,630,951
Balance at the end of the year 19,178,102 3,676,867
11. ADVANCES, DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS
AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Advances
Advance to staff 1.1 3,362,072 4,826,668
Advance to supplier 4,314 406 1,831,251
7,676,478 6,717,918
Deposits
Deposits placed with NCCPL in respect of; ]
- Loss on DFCs 41,318,360 121,472,925
- Exposure margin on regular market 779,000,000 85,000,000
- Exposure margin on DFCs 348,700,000 20,000,000
- Exposure margin on Margin Trading 129,850,000 61,000,000
- Loss on Margin Trading 125,143,548 70,061,453
- Exposure margin on Gem Market 160,000 50,000
- Loss margin on Gemn Market - 28,000 |
1.424,171,908 357,672,378
Deposits placed with PMEX in respect of: "
- Clearing deposit 541,854 500,000
- Exposure margin 541,757 - |
1,083,611 500,000
Prepayments
- Against leased office premises 7,226,010 5,533,650
- Others 1,407,947 1,439,458 |
8,633,957 6,973,108
Other receivables
Loan to related parties 1.2 299,677,849 47,874,329
Profit receivable on DFCs 78,818,652 52,567,494
Profit receivable on deposits with NCCPL 10,933,219 -
Receivable from dealers 64,653 120427
Receivable against trading of securities - 14,595,134
Sales tax receivable 1,954,273 4 560,834
Others 99,489 500,144 |
391,548,135 120,218,362
1,833,114,089 492 081,767
%. ANNUAL REPORT 2024 54
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1141

11.2

11.2.1

11.2.11

11.2.2

11.221

11.2.3

11.2.3.1

12.

EECURITIEE LTD

This represents interest free advances provided in accordance with the Company’s policy and these has been

secured against the provident fund balance.

(Restated)
g 2024 2023
Loan to related parties - unsecured MNote Rupees Rupees
Ms. Erum Bilwani 1121 225,030,256 5,252,095
hfs, Intertechnologies (Private) Limited 11.2.2 46,004,383 42,522,234
M/s. AzureTech (Private) Limited 11:2.3 28,643,210 -
299,677,849 47,874,329
Loan to Ms. Erum Bilwani
Opening balance 5.352,095 57,852,095
Disbursement made during the year 209,000,000 30,000,000
Interest charged 10,678,161 -
Repayment received during the year - {82,500,000)
Closing balance i oo B 225,030,256 5,352,095

This represents a loan provided to Ms. Erm Bilwani, a related party, which is repayable on demand. There is
no security for this receivable. The maximum aggregate cutstanding balance durning the year, based on month-
end balances, was Rs. 214.35 milllon (2023 Rs. 5.35 million).

Loan to M/s. Intertechnologies (Private) Limited

Cpening balance 42,522,234 42,522,234
Interest charged 4,239,599 -
Repayment received during the year {757,450) -
Closing balance 11:2.2.1 46,004,383 42,522,234

This represents a loan provided to Mis. Intertechnologles (Private) Limited, a related party, for a working capital
requirement, which is repayable on demand. There is no security for this receivable. The maximum aggregate
outstanding balance during the year, based on month-end balances, was Rs. 42.52 million (2023: Rs. 42.52
million).

Loan to M/s. AzureTech (Private) Limited

Opening balance

28,000,000 -

Dishursement made
Interest charged 643,210 -
Clasing balance T1:2:24 28,643,210 -

This represents a loan provided to M/s. AzureTech (Private) Limited, a related party, for a working capital
requirement, which is repayable on demand. There is no security for this receivable. The maximum aggregate
outstanding balance during the year, based on month-end balances, was Rs. 28 million (2023: Rs. Nil).

SHORT TERM LOAN

During the year, the Company received offices no. 1003-1010 located on the 10th floor of the New Stock
Exchange Building, as full and final settlement of the outstanding loan receivable of Rs. 42 .646 million.
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13.

131

14.

14.1

14.2

14.2.1

14.2.2

EECURITIEE LTD

(Restated)
2024 2023

CASH AMD BANK BALANCES Mote Rupees Rupees

Cash in hand 87,214 34 351
Cash at bank : :

= current accounts | 231,301,165 119,965,120
- saving accounts 13.1 12,761,757 | 479,539
244,062,922 120.444.659
13.2 244,150,136 120,479,010

Markup on these balances ranges from 11.01 % to 20.05% (2023: 9.5% to 17.5%) per annum on daily
product basis.

Bank balances include customers' bank balances held in designated bank accounts amounting to Rs. 222.88
million (2023: Rs. 363.37 million).

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorized share capital

As a consequence of the reverse merger, the Company's authorized share capital has been increased from
Rs. 1,000 million to Rs, 2,000 million (divided inte 200,000,000 shares of Rs, 10 each). The Company’s
Memorandum and Articles of Association stand amended accordingly to align with the Merger Scheme.

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital

(Restated) (Restated)
December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2024 2023 Note 2024 2023
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
(Number of Shares) Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each
108,735,374 108,735,374 - as consideration for the reverse merger  14.2.1 1,087,353,740 1,087.353,740
20,015,650 - - @5 fully paid in cash 200,156,500 -
128,751,024 108,735,374 1,287,510,240 1,087 353,740

As described in note 1.3 above, following the reverse merger, these financal statements represent the
cohtinuation of the financal statements of IMS, the accounting acquirer. Accordingly, the corresponding figures
presented herein reflect the pre-combination amounts of assets, liabilities, eguity, income and expenses as
recognized in the books of account of IMS for the twelve-month period ended December 31, 2023

However, in compliance with the requirement of IFRS 3 'Business Combinations', the equity structure of IMS
Ipreviously reported as 50,340,451 ordinary shares of Rs, 10 each) has been restated using the exchange ratio
(i.e. swap ratio) of 2.16 established in the Merger Scheme so as to reflect the number of shares issued by EFG
Hermes Pakistan Limited, the accounting acquiree, in the reverse merger (i.e. 108,735,374 ordinary shares
of Rs. 10 each).

There are no agreements among shareholders in respect of voting rights, board selection, rights of first refusal
and block voting.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 56




ARSI\ 1\ RKET

15.

16.

16.1

16.2

17.

17.1

17.2

EECURITIEE LTD

{(Restated)
2024 2023
LEASE LIABILITY Mote Rupees Rupees
Opening balance 16,644,682 -
Additions 53,569,100 18,830 800
Interest expense 25 6,764,883 2442 775
Payments {22,989,554) 14,628,893}
53,989,111 16,644,687
Less: Current maturity shown under current liabilities (19,966,637) 16,542,906)
34,022,474 10,101,776
DEFERRED LIABILITIES
Deferred taxation - net 16.1 16,990,705 933,060
Advance from employee 16.2 2,500,000 -
19,490,705 933,060
Deferred taxation - net
Ceferred tax liabilities
- Accelerated tax depreciation 14,303,060 2,709,209
- Unrealized gain on short term investment 4,868,116 -
- Right-of-use assets 19,442,499 6,085,038
38,613,675 8,794 247
Deferred tax assets
- Prowision for expected credit loss (5,561,650) {896,534)
- Lease liabilities (15,656,842) (5,112,114)
- Intangible assets (404,478) (404,476)
- Minimurn tax - (1,448,063) |
{21,622,970) (7,861,187)
16,990,705 933,060

During the year, the Company entered into an arrangemeant with an employee for the sale of a vehicle for
Rs. 16.76 million, an amount deducted from the employee’s monthly salary. Ownership will be transferred
upon full payment, and the employee retains the right to settle the outstanding balance early with prior written
notice.

(Restated)
2024 2023
SHORT TERM BORROWINGS - Secured Note Rupees Rupees
Running finance:
IS Bank Limited 171 463,269,383 257,932,605
Bank Al Habib Limited 172 27,588,576 70,434, 307
Habib Bank Lirmited 17.3 45,754,727 399 450
536,612,686 328,766,362

This represents the amount availed under a running finance facility obtained from M/s. J5 Bank Limited with
a limit of Rs. 480 million (2023: Rs.480 million). The facility carries mark-up at the rate of 3-month KIBOR plus
2% (2023: 3-Month KIBOR plus 2%) per annum and iz secured by way of pledge of shares with minimum
margin 35% and persenal guarantees of Erum Bilwani. The expiry date of the facility is March 31, 2025,

This represents the amount availed under a running finance facility obtained from M/s. Bank Al-Habib Limited
with a limit of Rs. 300 million (2023: Rs.300 million). The facility carries mark-up at the rate of 3-Maonth KIBOR
plus 2% (2023: 3-Month KIBOR plus 2%) per annum and is secured by way of a pledge of shares of companies
listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX), held in the name of the company (reqgistered with SECP) as per
the bank's approved shares list. Additionally, the facility is secured by the personal guarantees of Mrs. Erum
Bilwani. The expiry date of the facdility is August 31, 2025,
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17.2

17.4

18.

19.
19.1

19.1.1

19.1.2

19.1.3

EECURITIEE LTD

The Company has a total finance facility of Rs. 52 million (2023: Rs. Nil ). these facilities are availed for working
capital requirements. These are secured against the pledge of PIBs and T-bills with a 10% margin over market
value. The rate of mark-up on these facilities carry at the rate of 1 month KIBOR plus 0.1% per annum (2023:
Nil ). The expiry date of the facility is April 30, 2025.

As of the reporting date, the Company had unutilized facilities for short term borrowings available from above
mentioned banks amounting to Rs. 1,295.39 million (2023 Rs. 1,503.23 million}.

(Restated)
2024 2023

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES Note Rupees Rupees
Trade payables 1,350,621,795 366,585,261
Future profit withheld 112,917,581 161,617,929
Payable against Margin Trading - 67,929,362
Commission payable 58,411,821 50,538,509
Withholding sales taxes payable 126,093 98,7593
Sales tax pavable 21,006,396 11,203,768
Withholding income tax payable 17,099,633 12,645,954
Capital gains tax payable to NCCPL 82,087,250 75,517,519
Accrued expenses 16,263,792 11,932,036
Due to a related party 3,778,358 3,798,358
Other payables 21,977,263 20,590,630

1,684,289, 982 782,458,119

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Contingencies

The income tax authorities had issued Show Cause Notices under section 122(9) for amendment under section
122(54) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for tax years 2010, 2011 and 2013. The Company has filed
petitions in the Honarable High Court of Sindh at Karachi against notices/orders for tax years 2010 and 2011,
The Honorable High Court of Sindh has granted Stay Orders in favor of the Company. In respect of tax year
2013, the Company had already filed an appeal and proceedings thereof are pending till date. The management
is confident that the eventual outcome of the matter will be decided in favour of the Company. Accordingly,
no provisions have been made in these financial statements.

The tax department had issued Show Cause Notice under section 12101 ){d) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001
for best judgment assessment for the tax year 2012, The Company had filed Suit befoere the Honorable High
Court of Sindh at Karachi for challenging notice and merger of proceedings under section 122(54) of the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 initiated and closed earlier by the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue. The
management is confident that the eventual cutcome of the matter will be decided in favour of the Company.

The income tax autharities had filed second appeal before the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue, Karachi
against order no. 62/2016 & 63/2016 of the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeal-lll), Karachi passed in favar
of the Company in the matter of non withholding of tax Rs. 23,049,621/ and Rs. 35,389,628/- for tax year
2014 and 2015 respectively against payment of Buy-Back of shares under section 954 of the repealed
Companies Ordinance, 1984. The management is confident that the eventual outcome of the matter will be
decided again in favour of the Company. Accordingly, no provisions have been made in these financial
statements.
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19.2

19.2.1

19.2.2

20.

21.

22,

EECURITIEE LTD

Commitments

Following commitments were cutstanding as at the reporting date:

Bank guarantee in favour of NCCPL
Bank guarantee in favour of PSX

Note

19.2.1
19.2.2

2024
Rupees

395,000,000
25,000,000

(Restated)
2023
Rupees

335,000,000
25,000,000

This bank guarantee has been issued by M/s: Dubai lslamic Bank Pakistan Limited in favor of National Clearing
Company Pakistan Limited amounting to Rs. 25 million against Ready Market and amounting to Rs. 370 million

against Future Market.

This bank guarantee has been issued by M/s. Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited in favor of Pakistan Stock

Exchange Limited amounting to Rs. 25 million against Base Minimum Capital requirement.

OPERATING REVENUE

Brokerage commission
Underwriting and financial advisory service revenue
tarkup on Margin Financing

INCOME FROM INVESTMENTS - net

Capital gain on sale of short term investments - net
Change in unrealized gain on remeasurement
of short term investments - net

Dividend income

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, commission and other benefits
CDC and NCCPL charges
Communication expenses

Directars remuneration

Legal and professional charges
Brokerage commission to former parent
Rent, rates and taxes

Utility expense

Depreciation on operating fixed assets
Depreciation on right-of-use-asset
Repair and maintenance

Bank charges

Advertisernent expense

Entertainment expense

Traveling and conveyance expenses
Insurance SxpeEnsze

PSX rent, electricity and service charges
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MNote

221

31

(Restated)
2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
854,953,283 383,544,244
19,140,025 6,890,320
122,119,509 B4,652,050
096,212,817 455,086,614
170,603,926 142,164,721
59,802,524 24 273,560
230,406,450 166,438,281
10,207,255 15,077,637
240,613,705 181,515,918
349,211,178 220,468,794
43,886,017 10,269,458
41,256,935 25,047,805
30,997,540 23,957,648
25,600,611 17,912,691
23,127,656 -
22,737,905 14,962,008
11,742,830 7,268,652
11,408,007 3. 287,538
7,336,145 3,824,730
6,684 058 1,058,326
6,621,238 4,181,329
5,738,555 28,198
5,132,651 1,464,570
4,872,847 2,370,917
3,515,943 1,069,570
2,258,595 1,844,056
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221

22.11

22.2

23.

24,

EECURITIEE LTD

MNote
Auditor's remuneration 22.2
Printing and stationery
Amortization of intangible assets 6.2
Postage and courier
Other expense
Salaries, commission and other benefits
Salaries and other benefits 221

Commission

(Restated)
2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
1,750,000 -

554,802 672,250
357,940 281,200
213,746 167,767
4,938,355 3,837,284
609,943,554 344,284,791
164,399,611 96,411,083
184,811,567 124,057,711
349,211,178 220,468,794

Salaries, commission and other benefits include Rs. 12:88 million (2023: Rs. 10.59 million} in respect of provident

fund contribution,
Auditors' remuneration Note
Audit fee

Code of Corporate Governance
Other certifications

OTHER EXPENSES
Donation 231
Provision for expected credit losses on trade debts 10.2

Intangible assets written off
Other receivables and deposits written off

(Restated)
2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
1;3 Mfuuu -
80,000
370,000
1,750,000 =
39,073,500 8,700,000
15,501,235 1,630,951
5,689,370 -
231,147 51,322
60,495,252 10,382,273

MNone of the directors or their spouse had any interest in the donees. Further, the particulars of the parties to
whom donation paid exceeds Rs. 1 million or 10% of the total donation, whichever is higher, are as follows:

Indus Hospital
Altmaad Trust
Batwa Memon Jamat

Saylani Welfare Trust
Baitussalam Weifare Trust

OTHER INCOME

tarkup income

Bargain purchase gain on reverse merger
Gain on disposal of property and equipment
Others
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(Restated)
2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
5,000,000
5,000,000 5,000,000
5,000,000 3,000,000
5,000,000 -
10,000,000 -
77,760,191 8,873,926
25,737,911 =
119,773 27,867
8,916,561 8,899,391
112,534,436 17,801,184

el




INTE R \%rAV:d 4l

EECURITIEE LTD

(Restated)
2024 2023
241 Markup income Rupees Rupees
Interest income on bank deposits 1,031,157 47,674
Interest income on deposits with NCCPL 61,168,064 8,826,252
Interest accrue on loan to related parties 15,560,970 -
77,760,191 8,873 926

25. FINANCE COSTS

Markup on short term borrowings 82,171,878 70,832,920
Markup on long term borrowing 26,395,533 =
Markup on MTS financing 18,795,793 1,675,339
Markup on lease 6,764,883 2,442 775
134,128,087 74,951,034
26. LEVIES
Excess of minimum tax over normal tax -
Income tax - Final tax reqime 970,785 -
970,785 -
27. TAXATION - NET
Current - for the year 49,330,480 40,343,792
Deferred 12,241,512 (18,853,158)
61,571,992 21,490,634

27.1 The Company in the light of ‘Application Guidance' issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan
(ICAP) wia Circular No.07/2024 dated May 15, 2024, has accounted for the accounting treatment and
presentation of 'Minimum and Final Taxes', charged under the Income tax Ordinance. 2001 {ITQ) as a change
in accounting policy in the current year. The related corresponding effect is not restated retrospectively due
1o the consequential impacts being immaterial.

27.2  Relationship between income tax expense and accounting profit before taxation

(Restated)
2024 2023
Rupees Rupees

Profit before levies and taxation 544,794,065 224,785,618

Tax at the applicable rate of 29% (2023: 29%) 157,990,279 65,187,829
Tax effects of:

- permanent difference (67,033) (544)

- income subject to taxation under Presumptive Tax Regime (2,433,199) 14,372,515)

- benefit of unusad tax losses and tax credits for which deferred tax
asset was not previously recognized (50,913,941) -

- Realized or unrealized capital gain on short term investments (34,914,280) (46,817,370)

- Tax effects on admissible / inadmissible adjustment (8,089,834) 7,483,334

61,571,992 21,490,634

27.3  Status of income tax assessments

Income tax assessments of the Company are deemed to be finalized as per tax returns filed up to tax year
2024, Tax returns are subject to further assessment under provisions of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 ("the
Ordinance™) unless selected for an audit by the taxation authorities. The Commissioner of Income Tax may,
at any time during a period of five years from date of filing of return, select a deemed assessment order for
audit.
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(Restated)
28. EARNING PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED 2024 2023
28.1 Basic earnings per share Rupees Rupees
Profit after taxation 482,251,288 203,294 984

Mumber of shares
118,743,199 108,735,374

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding

Rupees

Earnings per share - basic 4.06 1.87

28.2 Diluted earnings per share

There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share of the Company, since there were no potential
ordinary shares in issue as at December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023,

29, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period as shown in the statement of cash flows are
reconciled to the related items in the statement of financal position as follows

(Restated)
2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees
Cash and bank balances 13 244,150,136 120,479,010
Short-term borrowings - running finance 17 (536.612,686) {328,766,362)
(292,462,550) (208,287,352)

30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALAMCES

Related parties comprise of associated companies, key management personnel including directors and their
close family members. Remuneration of the Chief Executive and Directors is disclosed in note 31 to the financial
statements. Transactions entered into, and balances held with, related parties during the year, are as follows:

Relationship and

Mame of the related percentage Transactions during the year (Restated)
party shareholding and year end balances 2024 2023
Transactions during the year
_ Interst Accrue 4,239,599 -
Intertechnologies Associated Loan repaid 757,450 E
(Private} Limited campany Balance outstanding
Loan recevable 45,004,383 42,522,234
gnggf[":lﬁ Ei-' fglglppefgﬂerties Transactions during the year
T L 1 I:Il -
(Private) Limted Associated tan recovered 20,000
company Balance outstanding
Loan payable 3,778,358 3,798,358
Transactions during the year
_ Associatad Brokerage commission earned 251,585 921,716
i
AR hosingsLimiee Lompany Balance outstanding
Trade receivable 2,375,163 5,900,554
Transactions during the year
Markup income 642,210 5
Azuretech (Private) Associated Loan disbursad 28,000,000 E
Limited company /
Balance outstanding
Loan receivable 28,643,210 -
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Relationship and
Mame of the related percentage Transactions during the year {Restated)
party shareholding and year end balances 2024 2023
Transactions during the year
Brokerage commission earned 15,505,268 14,237 332
Loar disbursed during the year 209,000,000 30,000,000
Erum Bilwani Director Loan recovered during the year . {82,500,000)
Interst Accrue 10,678,161 -
Balance outstanding
Loan recevable 225,030,256 5,352,095
Trade recewable 91,311,879 11,569,465
Transactions during the year
Brokerage commission earned 91,789,479 43,473,023
; Spouse of
Azneem Bilwani DErer:mr Balance outstanding
Trade receivable - 85,411,291
Trade payable 119,913,866 -
Transactions during the year
Brokerage commission earnad 1,060,089 902,872
Shehzad Hussain Director Balance outstanding
Trade recevable - 364,516
Trade payable 738,294 -
Transactions durning the year
Erokerage commission earped 2,011,583 706,256
Loan recovered - 570,800
huhammad Rehan Director
Alam Balance outstanding
Trade recevable - 6,110,806
Trade payable 51,177 -
Transactions during the year
Farni i :
Uraib Azriesrn Bilwani agﬁﬁh;rgrfly Brokerage commission earned 1,515,276 233 219
Director Balance DLIEIE'I‘Idng
Trade receivabile 22,100,049 8,961,186
Transactions during the year
Close Family Brokerage commission earnad 48,177 139,174
Laiba Azneem Bilwani EF‘;E{J,;F o fHalance clititanding
Trade receivable 3,683,427 .
Trade payabla - 126,135
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REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

The angregate amounts charged In the finandal statements for remuneration, including certain benefits to
the Chief Executive, Directors and executives of the Company, are as follows:

Chief Executive Director Executive Total

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
Managenial remuneration 8,250,000 7552500 13729849 5185660 53,3061531 42272951 75341380 S&011.110
Bonus 4200000 3095000 3,000,000 5089397 5485000 3834987 12685000 10019379
heeting fee 50,000 200,000 250,000 950,000 . 300,000 1150000
Retirement benefits 495,000 420,750 1,022,691 464341 3,316,168 2282577 4833859 3.167.608

12995000 19,258,250 18,002,540 12680308 62,162,698 45390500 93,160,239 72,348,157

Mumber of persons 1 1 7 & 14 12

The Company has also provided its Chief Executive, Directors and certain executives with Company maintained
car.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Financial risk analysis

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liguidity risk and market risk
{interest/mark-up rate risk and price risk). The Company's overall risk management program focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the financial performance.
The Company consistently manages its exposure to financial risk without any material change from previous
periods in the manner described in notes below.

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of Company's risk
management framework. All treasury related transactions are carried out within the parameters of these
policies.

Market risk

Market risk means that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices such as foreign exchange rates, equity prices and interest rates. The objective is to manage and
control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return. Market risk comprises
of three types of risks: foreign currency risk, price risk and interest rate risk. The market risks associated with
the Company's business activities are discussed as under;

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. All foreign currency translations are carriad out within acceptable
parameters of policies established by Board of Directors.

Price risk

Price risk represents the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
the market prices (other than those arising from interest/ mark up rate risk or currency risk), whether those
changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting
all or similar financial instruments traded in the market. Presently, daily stock market fluctuation is controlled
by regulatory authorities which reduces the volatility of prices of equity securities. The Company manages price
risk by maonitoring the exposure in gquoted securities and implementing the strict discipline in internal risk
management and investment policies, which includes disposing of equity investments and collaterals held
before it leads the Company to incur significant mark-to-market and credit losses. As of the reporting date,
the Company was exposed to price risk since it had investments in guoted equity securities and units of mutual
funds, amounting in aggregate, to Rs. 121.90 million (2023; Rs. 441.99 million) and also because the Company
held collaterals in the form of equity securities against their debtor balances.
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The carrying vaiue of investments subject to price nisk 15 based on quoted market prices as of the reporting

date. Market prices are subject to fluctuation and, conseguently, the amount realized on the subsequent sale
of an investment may significantly differ fram the reported market value. Fluctuation in the market price of a
security may result from perceived changes in the underlying economic characteristics of the investee, the
relative price of alternative investments and general market canditions. Furthermore, amount realized on the
sale of a particular security may be affected by the relative quantity of the security being sold.

The Company's portfolio of short term investrments is broadly diversified so as to mitigate the significant risk
of decline in prices of securities in particular sectors of the market.

Analysis of short term investment in quoted equity securities by business sector is as follows:

Insurance

Fartilizer

Technology & Communication
Ol & Gas Exploration Campanies
Cerment

Textile Composite

Inv, Banks / Inv. Cos. / Securities Cos.

Synthetic & Rayon

Automobile Assembler

Refinery

Pharmaceuticals

Ol & Gas Marketing Companies
Chermical

Commercial Banks

Engineering

Papar, Board & Packaging
Power Generation & Distribution
Sugar & Allied Industries
Automobile Parts & Accessorias
Food & Persanal Care Products
Glass & Ceramics

Sensitivity analysis:

December 31, 2024

December 31, 2023

(Rupees) %
3,447 0.00%
890,158 0.73%
68,121 0.06%
5,433,996 4.46%
140 0.00%
2,275 0.00%
64,348,301 52.81%
473 0.00%
21,627,766 17.75%
1,593,603 1.31%
8,429,370 6.92%
1,379,908 1.13%
720,000 0.59%
5,678,576 4,66 %
1,519,800 1.25%
4,047,300 3.32%
3,831,673 3.14%
2,265,750 1.86%
- 0.00%
- 0.00%
e 0.00%
121,840,657 100.00%

(Rupees) %
1,765,600 0.40%
- 0.00%
12,230,782 2.77%
18,962,123 4:29%
5,177,580 1.17%
1,010 0.00%
3,537,746 0.80%
473 0.00%
12,148,800 2.75%
138,049,619 31.24%
31,992,800 7:24%
590,332 0.16%
37,156,900 B.41%
318,529 0.07%
- 0.00%
3,985,220 0.90%
125,287,248 28.35%
- 0.00%
Q774,500 2:21%
35,928,793 B.13%
4,934 644 1.12%
441 937,699 100.00%

The table below summarizes Company's price risk as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and shows the effects
of a hypothetical 10% increase and a 10% decrease in market prices as at the reporting dates, The selected
hypothetical change does not reflect what could be considered to be the best or worst case scenarios. Indeed,
results could be worse because of the nature of markets and the atorementioned concentrations existing in
Company's investment portfolio,

December 31, 2024

December 31, 2023
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Fair value

121,902,755

441 989,715

Hypothetical price

change

10% increase

10% decrease

10% increase
10% decrease

Estimated fair
value after
hypothetical

change in prices

134,093,031
109,712,480

486,188,687
397,790,744

Hypothetical
increase /

12,190,276
(12,190,275)

44,198,972
(44,198,872)

(decrease) in profit
! {loss) before tax

65



INTE R I\ <=l

{iii)

32.1.2

S

EECURITIEE LTD

Interest rate risk

Interest / mark-up rate risk is the risk that value of a financial instrument or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate due to changes in the market interest / mark-up rates. Sensitivity to interest / mark
up rate risk arises from mismatches of financial assets and liabilities that mature or re-price in a given period.
The Company manages these mismatches through risk management strategies where significant changes in
gap position can be adjusted. The short term borrowing arrangements have variable rate pricing that is
dependent an the Karachi Inter Bank Offer Rate (KIBOR) as indicated in note to these financial statements.

Sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate instruments

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit ar
loss, Therefore, a change in interest rate would not affect the carrying amount of any financial instrument,

Sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments

t the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the Company’s significant interest-bearing financial instruments
was as follows:

2024 2023 2024 2023

Effective interest rate (%) Carrying amounts (Rs.)
Financial assets - variable rate instruments
Bank deposits - saving account 11.01% to 20.05% 6% 10 14% 12,761,757 479,539
Deposits placed with NCCPL 1,424 171,908 357672 378
Financial liabilities - variable rate instruments
Short Terrm Borrowing 12.70% to0 21.99%  17.06% to 22.90% 536,612,686 328 766,362
Leaase liabilities 24.49% to 16.25%  25.41% 1o 23.46% 53,989,111 16,644 682

The following information summarizes the estimated effects of 1% hypothetical increases and decreases in
interest rates on cash flows from financial assets and financial liabilities that are subject to interest rate risk,
It is assumed that the changes occur immediately and uniformly to each category of instrument containing
interest rate risk. The hypothetical changes in market rates do not reflect what could be deemed best or worst
case scenarios. Variations in market interest rates could produce significant changes at the time of early
repayments. For these reasons, actual results might differ from those reflected in the details specified below.
The analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant,

Effect on profit after tax
1% increase 1% (decrease)
~e== RUPEES ==rremmmreee
As at December 31, 2024
Cash flow sensitivity - Variable rate financial instruments (3,719,342) 3,719,342
As at December 31, 2023
Cash flow sensitivity - Variable rate financial instruments {2,330,836) 2,330,836

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a finanaal instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by
failing to discharge an obligation,

A financial asset is regarded as credit impaired as and when it falls under the definition of a 'defaulted’ finandal

asset, For the Company’s internal credit management purposes, a financial asset is considered as defaulted
when it is past due for 30 days or more.
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The Company writes off a defaulted financial asset when there remains no reasonable probability of recovening
the carrying amount of the asset through available means.

Maximum exposure to credit risk

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date 15 as follows

2024 2023
Note Rupees

Long term advances and depaosits 13,955,005 6,593,405
Trade debts (&) 735,039,582 551,990,331
Receivables against margin financing 640,570,348 402,392,261
Short term deposits 1,425,255,519 358,172,378
Other receivables 389,593,862 115,657,528
Short term loans - 42,646,012
Bank balances (o) 244,062,922 120,444 659

3,448,477,238 1,597,896,574

Note (a) - Credit risk exposure on trade debts

Te reduce the exposure to credit risk the Company has developed a policy of obtaining advance payments
from its customers.

The aging of local trade debts as at the reporting date is as follows:

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Gross Provision for Gross Provision for
carrying expected carrying expected
amount credit losses amount credit losses

Past due 1-30 days 635,223,680 - 457,635,980 -
Past due 31-180 days 57,693,778 2,336,062 47 860,367 414,478
Past due 181-365 days 26,698,406 3,217,729 25,801 385 918,714
More than 365 days 34,601,820 13,624,311 21,275,466 2,345,675
754,217,684 19,178,102 555,667 198 3,676,867

Note (b) - Credit risk exposure on bank balances

The Company's credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counter parties are banks with reasonably
high credit ratings. As of the reporting date, the external credit ratings of the Company's bankers were as

follows:

Short Credit
Banks / other institutions term rating 2024 2023

rating agency Rupees
Al Baraka Bank Limited At JICR VIS 22,483,972 1,196,8%4
Allied Bank Limited ALL PACRA 13,182 -
Askar Bank Limited Al PACRA, 200,000 -
Bank Al Habib Limited ALA, PACRA 7,987,317 4,801,832
Bank Alfalah Limited ALA PACRA 1,343,912 176,527
Dubai Islamic Bank Ly JICR WIS 19,192,254 2487956
Habib Bank Limited Al b JCR W% 55,731,923 14,937,171
Habib Metropalitan Bank Abt PACRA 33,162,784 3,011,857
15 Bank Limited A, PACRA 68,015,799 23,094 617
MCE Bank Limited Al PACRA 3,428,727 2.438,653
Meezan Bank Limited Adh ICR JCR WIS 4,343,572 6,219,434
Slandard Chartered Pakistan AAA PACRA 193,053 -
Summit Bank Limited BEB- ICR JCR VIS 22,006,059 1,372,112
Urmited Bank Limited AL ICR YIS 5,960,368 727,646

244,062,922 120,444,659
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Concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of financial instruments or contracts are entered into with
the same party, or when counter parties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same
geographic region, or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual
obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations of
credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company's performance to developments affecting a particular
industry. As of the reporting date, the Company was exposed to the following concentrations of credit risk:

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Total Concentration &% of Tatal Concentration % of
exposure total EXDOSITE total
exXposure ENpokLre
Rupees
Trade debts 735,039,582 93,389,492 13% 551,990,331 85,411,291 15%
Bark balances 244,062,922 56,128,371 23% 120,444 659 83084617 69%
149,517,863 168,495 908

32.1.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity risk arises because of
the possibility that the Company could be required to pay its liabilities earlier than expected or difficulty in
raising funds to meet commitments associated with financial liabilities as they fall due. The Company's appraach
to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its
liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceplable losses or
risking damane to the Company's reputation. The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities,

32.2

including interest payments:

December 31, 2024

Shart term borrowings -
secured

Lease Liability

Advance from employee

Trade and oiher payables

Accrued markup

December 31, 2023

Shart term borrowings -
secured

Lease Lizbility

Trade and oiher payables

Accrued markup

Contractual cash flows

Carrying Contractual Six months Six to twelve Onetofive More than
amount cash flows ar less maonths years five years
Rupees
536,612,680 536,612,686 536,612,686 - - -
53,989,111 73,767,378 10,989,446 10,989,446 51,788,486 -
2,500,000 2,500,000 - - 2,500,000

1,563,970,610 1,563,970,610  1,563,970,610 - - -
17,165,702 17,165,702 17,165,702 - - -
2174238109 2,194,016,376  2,128,738,444 10,989,446 54,288,486 -
328,766,362 328,766,362 - - - -
16,644 682 26,390,096 3,373,820 3,573,920 19,644,256 -
GE2, 592,085 682,992,085 682,992,085 - - -
18,919,858 18,919,858 18,919,858 - - -
1047322087 1,057,068 401 105,285,863 3,373,920 15,042,256 -

Financial instruments by categories

The table below provides reconciliation of the line items in the Company's statement of financial position to
the categories of financial instruments,

AMNUAL REPORT 2024

68




INTE R I\AY S0

EECURITIEE LTD

December 31, 2024

At fair value At amortised At fair value
through profit cost through other
or loss comprehensive
income
Rupees
Financial assets
Lang term depaosits . 13,955,005 -
Short term investments 121,902,755 158,470,434 -
Trade debis - 735,039,582 -
Receivables against margin financing . 640,570,348 .
Short term deposits - 1,424,171,908 -
Other receivables - 391,548,135 -
Shior temn loan - - -
Cash and bank balances - 244,150,136 -
121,902,755 3,607,905,548 -
Financial liabilities
Shart term barrowings - secured - 536,612,686 -
Lease [abilities . 53,989,111 .
Trade and other payables - 1,684,163,889 -
Aecrued markup - 17,165,702 .

. 2,291,931,388 -

December 31, 2023

33.

A far valus At amortised At fair value
thraugh profit cost thirough other
or o5 comprehensive
income
Rupees

Financial assets
Long term depasits . B,593,405 -
Short term investments 441,989,715 - -
Trade debis - 551,990,331
Recelvables agalnst margin financing 402,392 261
Shart term deposits 357,672,378
Other receivables 120,218 362
Short term loan 42 646,012
ash and bank balances . 120479010

441,983,715 1,601,991,759
Financial liabilities
Short term borrowings - secured - 328,766,362
Legse labilities - 16,644 682
Trade and other payables - 760,812,165
Accrued markup - 18,919 858

- 1,134,143 067

FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid 1o transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. Consequently, differences can arise between carrying

values and the fair value estimates.

The carrying amounts of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements approximate

thair fair values,

The Company measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the

inputs used in making the measurements:
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Level 1; Quoted market price (unadjusted} in an active market.

Level 2! Valuation technigues based on observable inputs.

Level 3; valuation technigues using significant unobservable inputs, This category includes all instruments
where the valuation techmque includes inputs not based on observable data

Fair values of financial assets that are traded in active markets are based on quoted market prices. For all other
financial instruments the Company determines fair values using valuation technigues unless the instruments
do not have a market / gquoted price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.

The table below analyses assets measured at fair value at the end of the reporting periad by the level in the
fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categorized:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

smmmnmmnnnn Amount in Rupees —-s—--m-

December 31, 2024
Financial assets measured at fair value

Investment in guoted equity securities 121,840,657 - - 121,840,657
Investment in units of mutual funds 62,098 - - 62,098
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

rareema Amount in Rupees —--—--—
December 31, 2023

Financial assets measurad at fair value

Short term investments 441,982,715 - . 441,989,715

34. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

341 Management of capital
The Company's objectives when managing capital are to sateguard the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain
an optimal capital structure.

Following is the quantitative analysis of what the Company manages as capital:

(Restated)
2024 2023
Note —— Rupees

Shareholders' equity:

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital 14 1,287,510,240 1,087,353,740
Discount on issue of shares (622,379,278) (583,949, 230)
Unappropriated prafit 043,684,154 461,432 866
Total capital managed by the Company 1.608,815,116 964,837,376
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Capital Adequacy Level

The Capital Adequacy Level as defined by Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC) is calculated

ds

Total assets

follows:

Note
34.2.1

Less: Total liabilities

Capital Adequacy Level

(Restated)
2024 2023
Rupees
3,974,620,510 2,138,898,133
2,365,805,394 1,174,060 757
1.608,815,116 964.837.376

While determining the value of the total assets the notional value of the TRE certificate as at year end as
determined by Pakistan Stock Exchange has been considered.

Liquid Capital [as per the requirements of the Securities Brokers (Licensing and Operations) Regulations,

2016]
& e s of valua in Hair Cut# Kot Adfusted
Pak Figuesas Agustrrens Walue
1. Amsets
T |Propery & Equapment 120,044, 188 120,044, 188 .
1.2 |imtangdle Asets 7246677 7,246,677 -
1.3 |imvestment in Govi. Sacurizey 158,470,434 . 158 AT0 434
1.4 [lwestment in Debt. Securities
|If 'isted than-
i. 5% of the balance sheet valug in the case of tenure upta 1 year - = -
i 7.5% of the bakance @t ealie, in the came of tenure from 1-3 years - - -
it 10% af the balante sheet vabue, inthe case of tenure of e than 3 years - -
if unlisted tham:
i 10% of the batance sheet value inthe case of tenurs upto 1 year. - -
ii. 12.5% of the balance sheet value, in the case of tenure from 1-3 years: - -
i, V5% of the balance sheet value, o0 the case of tenure &f Mare than 3 years - - -
1.5 |mwestroeri In Equity Securities
i T Irsted 15%0 oo WaR of eath securties on the Cutoff date a5 computed by the
2 g = : e i 67,284,141 12,006,027 55,278,120
secufities Exchange for respective securities whichever is higher
Prowided, that if ary af these secusities are pladged with the securities exchangs for
mairtzining Base Manimum Capital Requirement, 100% haircut on tre value of sligible B4.618,614 54,618,514 -
securities 10 the extent of minsmum required value of Base Minimum Capital
ii. it unlisted, 100% of carngng value 30,727,256 30,127 256 -
1.6 |myestmdnt in subsidianies - - -
1.7 |lwestrment in sssocisted companiesandertaking
i. If histed 20%: or \aR of each securities as computed by the Securitas Exchange far
respective secufities whichever is higher ;
i, It wnlisted, 100% of net valueg. - -
Statutory of regulatony depositsbasic depasts with the exchanges, clearnng house ar
ceritral depositary oe any other entity, however, any excess amount af cash deposited
4 8,025,000 8,025,000 )
with securties exchange to.comoly with the requirerrents of Base minimum capral, may
b taken in the caloulation of LC
1.9 |hargin deposits with exchange and ceanmg howss 1,425,255,519 1,425,255,519
1.0 |Ceposit with suthonzed intermediary against borroswed securities under SEB. - - -
141 |Other deposits and prepayments 18,878, 363 18,878 368 -
71
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&N ki Value In Halr Cut/
Pak Rupess Adfustrens
Berraed interest, profitor mark-up on amounts paced with finanoal institutons or debd
. sRCLFitios et NIl ’ : ’
100% in respect of markop accrued an loans 10 dinectons, subssdiares. ard other related
[Aarlies ) i i
1.43 |Oividends sacenables, - - -
Amounts recenaile aganst Repo fimancirg
1.4 |Amaunt paid a2 purchaser under the REPO agreement. (Sscurites purchased undes repo - - -
arvarsgiingnt dhall nod be ncluded i Lhi dvestrments |
I, Shiart Tesmt Loan To Employees: Loans are Sseured and Due for repayment within 12
1145 3,362 072 - 3,352,072
rhcmihs
|iv, Advance tax to thie axtént it is netted with prosesion of taxation. - - -
b, Receablas ather than frade recetvables 301,796,264 301,796,204 -
1.16 |Receivables from clearing house or securities exchamge(s}
100% value of claims athar than those on account 6f entitlements sgainst tradirg of
securities i all markets including &ehd gains. - - ?
;:ﬁ;:.cmu nt of entitlernants against rading of securities i all markets incheding 89.751.47% = 89,751,871
1.17 |Recehvahles from Custoners
i, Im case receivables are against margpn financing, the aggregate o (] value of secuntes
hekd in the hlocked account after applying VAR based Haircut, (i) cash deposited a=
collateral by the firancee (i} market value ot any securitias deposited as collateral after 640,570, 348 10,840,921 629729 427
apolying VaR based haircut.
|, Lower of net batarce sheet value or value determined through adjustments.
i, brcise receivables are agasnst margin trading, 5% of the net balance sheet value
. Mt amount after deducting halrcut ) - -
b1, EnCasE reckivanles are ageinsl securiles biorrowings Under SLE, the amount pasd b
MCCPL a5 collatoral Ugan entaring inlo cantract, - - -
i, Met-arnount after deducting harnicu
iv. Incase of other trade roceivabies not mare than 5 days overdue, 0% of the net
batance sheat valis 325,556,477 = 325,566,477
1. Balance shesat valus
v, Ircase of other trade receivables are overdue, or & days or mors, the agaragate of (1
i rmarket value of secuities purchased foe custamers e held in sub-accounts after
applyireg VAR based haircuts, (1) casn deposited as callataral by the respectve customer
and 4l the market vabue &f securlties held as collateral alter applying VYaRt based AT LRI i e
it
v, Laveer o et bakance sheet valee or value determaned through adiustments
i In the tase of amaunt of receivable from related parties, values determined affer
applying applicable harcuts oo underlying securities readdy available in respechive COG
account of the related party In the Tollowing manner
. Lpto 30 days, values determined after applying Vaf based hairuts,
b Abowe 30 days, bul upto 90 days, values determmed aflter applpng 50% or Vak MR 1588247 Y50
based haircuts whicheyer 15 highser,
c.Abowe 30 days, 100% haircut shasl be applicabie
Lowser of net batance sheet values ar values determined throogh adjustments
1158 |Cash and Bank bslances
|. Bank Balance-propriotary accounts 21,181,606 - 21,181,606
i, Bank balance-customer accounts 222,881 316 - 222 881,316
i, Cashoin hand LA * 57,214
Subscription money against Investmens in PO/ offer tor sals (asset)
i Mo Hairout may be applied in respect of amount paid as subscription money provided
that shares have nol been allotted or are not Included in Lhe mvestiments of secuntes
Lroker.
i, b case of investments in PO wheve shares have been allotted bt not yet credited in
(C05 account, 25% haircuts will be appicsble on the value o such securities i i .
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&N e U Value In Halr Cut/
Pak Rupess Adfustrens
i, In case of subscriptian in nght shares where the shares have it yet been cradited in
CDE account, 15% or YaR based haircut whichever i higher, will be applied oo Right
Shares
Balance sheet values ar net valuss atter deducting harouts
1.20 |Total Assets 3,574 620 510 754,081,485 3,220,539 024
2. Liabfiites
2.1 |Trade Payables
|. Payable to exchanges and cigarng house 17,009,633 - 17,089,633
ii. Payable against leveraged market products - - -
il Payahle tocostomes 1,350,621,795 - 1,350,621,795
2.7 |Current Liabilities
| Statutory and regulatory dues 130,319,372 - 120,319,372
il Accruals and other payables 224434123 - 2244034, 123
iii. Shart-term barrcvings 536,612 686 - 536,612,686
Iy, Cufrent partion of subordinated bans - - -
o Cigrrent pormon of londg term Rabilites - - -
Wi, Dedarrad Liabilites . - -
il Promvision for bad debts - - -
viil. Provision for taxation 43 237,969 - 43 237 564
w Other llabdities as per accounting pnncipies and Included m the financal statements 19,966,637 - 19,966,637
2.3 | Nor=Ciarrent Llabilites
1. LosgeTerm linancing
a. Lang-Term fmancing obtamed from financial insttutian: Long term portion of
financirg abtamed trom a finanoa! imstitution including amownt due agains: finance 34022 474 34022 474 -
(PR
f1. Cxther lomg-teser financiog * - =
ii. 5taff retirerment benefns . - -
i, Achyance against shares for Increase:in Captal of Securntes broxer: 100% haircut may)
be allved in respect of advance against shares if
a. The existing authanzad share capital allows the proposed enhanced shara capital
b. Board ot Directoss ot the company has approved the mcrease in capital
c. Relevant Regulatory approvals have been obtained . . -
d. There is no unreasonable delay in asue of shares agaimst advence’ and all regulatony
requirenents relzting 10 the increase in pasd Up capaal have been complesed
e. Auditor 5 satishied that such advarce 5 against the increase of capitat
v. Other liabdities as per actounting principies and included in the financa! statements 19,490,705 - 19,450,705
2.4 |Subardinated | oans
|, 100% of Subordinated |pans which fulfill the conditions specfied by SECP are allowed
1o be deducted
The Schedule |l provides that 100% hairout will be allowed aganst subordinated Loans
which fulfill the conditions specified by SECP. in this regard, following conditions are
spiactted
a. Loan agreernent rust be executed on stamp pager and must clearly reflect the - " -
amount o be repaid after 12 months of nepgorticg period
I3, M aireut will be allowed against short term portion which s repayable within nex
12 manths.
C. I case af earty repaymeni of lnan, adjustment shall be made o the Liguid Capital and
rewised Liquid Capital slatemenl musl be submilted to ekchange
il. Buhordingted foans which donot fulfil the conditions specified by SECP - - -
Total Liabilities 2,365,805,304 34002 AT 2,331,782,920
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‘value in Halr Cut/
5. Ne, Head of Accour
Fak Rupess Adjustments
3 |Ranking labfitles Resting to !
3.1 |Concentratlon In Margin Finamdng
The amaunt catculated client-to- client basls by whech any amount recevablie from any
of the financees sxcped 10% of the aggregate of amounts recenable from wotal = = 11,714,525
financees.
3.2 | Concentration in seourities lendirg and bommowing
The amount by which the aggregats of;
(1) Amount deposited by the booroeer with NCCPL
() Cash marging paid and e E =
(iii] The market value of securities plegged & margirs exceed the 110% of the market
value of shares bosrowed
3 |Ranking Lisbiities Relating 1o |
3.3 |met underwriting Commitments
(&} In the case af ngnt ms0es | 1T The market value o securnties 5 iss than or-equal o
the subscription price,
ihie angiipate of
(1) the 50% of Haircut multiplied by the underwriting commitments and
(i) the value by winich the underwriting commitments exceeds the market poce ot the . i i
S Limile,
Im the case of nghts ssues where the market price of securities 15 greater than the
subscription prce, 5% of the Haircwt maultiphied by the net undensniting
(k] in any other case - 1.2.9% of the net undenwriting commitments - - -
3.4 |Megative equity of subsidiary
The amount by wiich the total assets of ihe subsdiary [ excluding any armount due from
thie subsediary) excecd the total labdities of the subsidiany B T E
3.5 [Foreign exchange agreements and foreion currency positions
5% of the net pastion in toreign currercy Met position in forzign currency means the
chiffieronce ol fotal assets genamnated in fordgn Currendy less tots lubsilities - - -
denaminated in forelgn currency
6 |amourt Payabie inder REPO - - -
T |Regpo adustment
Im the case of finandierpurchaser the total arount recévable under Repo less the 110%
of the market value of underlying sEcunties
|im the case of financeedseller the market value of undarying securities after applying - - -
habrcut less the wotal amaunt recaived less value of ary securities deposited a5 collateral
by the purchaser alter apphying haurcut bess any Cash deposited by the purchaser
18 |Concentrated proprietary positions
I the market value of any security i between 25% and 51% of the total propristary
pasiticns hen 5% of the value of such secunty I the market of 4 security excesds 51% . - -
of the proprietary pasition, then 10% of the value of such security
10 |Opening Positions 'n fumares and options
I, Imv case af custames pasitions, the total magin requiréments in respect of open
pasiticens iess the amount of cash depasited by the custamer and the value of securities - - 2,550 154
heid as callateralf pledged with securties exchange after applying Wak haircuts
i, b case of propristary positions |, the total margen reguitements in respect of apen
pasitions 10 the extent not already met i i i
3.10 |Shart sell poshions
I Icase of custamer positeans, the market value of shares 4ald shoet n ready market
bhalf of customess after increadmg the same with the Val based haircuts ess the cash
depasited by the custamer as collatersl and the value of securities held as collateral after : i :
applyirg VAR based Halrouts
i beicase o propsietany positons, the market vabue oF shaees sald shesl i ready market
ane it vet settled inoreased by the amount of VAR based haircut less the value of - - F
secumties pledoed as collateral after applysng haircuts
Tetal Aanking Liabilities - 14,264 620
1,608 815,114 874,481 415
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35.

36.

36.1

36.2

36.3

36.4

36.5

36.6

EECURITIEE LTD

OPERATING SEGMENT

These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of a single reportable segment as the company's
asset allocation decisions are based on a single, integrated business strategy, and the company's performance
is evaluated on an overall basis;

Entity wide information with respect to IFRS-8 *Operating Segments® are stated below:

{a) Revenue from brokerage commission represents 85.82% (2023 84.28%) of total revenue whereas
remaining represent revenue from Underwriting and financial advisory service revenue and markup on
Margin Financing.

(b} All non current assets of the Company as at December 31, 2024 are located in Pakistan.

{c) 8.8B9% brokerage commission earned relates to customer outside Pakistan (2023: 3.67%).

{d) There is no major customer that amount to more than 10% of the company’s revenue excluding sales tax
and federal excised duty

GENERAL (Restated)
2024 2023

Number
Customers assets held in the Central Depository System

Mumber of shares as at 31 December 507,236,166 3236,215.179

Value of shares as at 31 December 18,575,417,474 6,132,350,754

Corresponding figures

The corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever considered necessary, to comply
with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2017 and for the purpose of comparison and better presentation,

Investments made by the provident fund

The investments out of the provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of Section 218
of the Companies Act, 2017 and the rules formulated for this purpose.

(Restated)
2024 2023
Number of employees —— Number
Total number of employees as at the year end 92 67
Average number of employees during the vear a0 65

Date of authorization of financial statement for issue

These financial statements have been authorised by the Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting
held an March 25, 2025

Level of rounding

All the figures in the financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest rupee.

r

[

Chie?’éuecuﬁue Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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FORM 34
PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
1 Incorporation Number 0040559
2 Name of the Company INTERMARKET SECURITIES LIMITED
3 Pattern of holding of the shares held by the shareholders as at 31122024
No. of Total Shares
4 Shareholders M RIS Held
524 1 Te o0 1,192
168 101 To 500 62,143
1811 501 Ta oon gan,277
2ad 1001 Ta =000 460,457
35 s001 To 50300 737,709
i3 10001 To 500 72,428
7 15001 To 20000 76,500
z 20001 To 25000 45 593
1 25001 To 30000 115,785
2 3001 To 5000 63,500
2 45001 Ta 50000 148,000
1 50007 Ta 55000 51525
z 0001 To 000 130,000
1 #3001 To 80000 89,000
1 95001 To 100000 100,000
1 100007 To 105000 102,300
2 115001 To 120000 120,000
4 130004 To 135000 133,713
2 755001 To SE000D 755,247
1 225001 To 830000 825,553
1 o000’ To Se5000 840,565
1 1075001 Ta HEO050 1,078,501
1 3695001 Ta 3700000 3,697,762
1 1020500 To 02 000D 10,207 982
1 53280001 To 53285000 53280325
1 55455001 To 55450000 55455041
2611
128,751,024

ANMNUAL REPORT 2024

76



INTE R WAV SSi

EECURITIEE LTD

Pattern Of Shareholding as on December 31, 2024

[Sub-Regulation 2(e) of Reqgulation 34 under chapter IV of Securities
Brokers (licensing and Operation) Regulations, 2016

SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING 5% OR MORE OF THE VOTING SHARES/INTRESTS IN THE COMPANY

e Number Of Number of % of
Shareholders Shares Held | Shareholding
Erum Bilwani i 55,455,041 43.07
Uraik Bitwani 1 53,280,325 41.38
£FG-Hermes Frentiers Holdings LLC 1 10,207,982 7.93
CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDINGS HOLDING ABDVE 5%
Helding Holding
Nimas Balance as at | Balance as at B
December 31 December 31 na
2023 2024
Erum Bilwanl 55455041 55455 041
Uraity Bilwani - 53,280,325 54,280,325
cFa-Hermes Fromtiers Holdings LLC 10,207 952 10,207,582 -

*Post merger shareholding
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EECURITIEE LTD

Pattern of Shareholding under Rule 5.19.11(x) of the Code of Corporate Governance as on December 31, 2024

(additional information)

Number of | Number of % of
Saegdites of Shareliaiders Shareholder| shares Held | Shareholding
1 ASSOCIATED COMPANIES, UNDERTAKING AMD RELATED PARTIES.
Wr. Uraib Bilwani 1 53,280,375 41,38
2 MUTUAL FUMNDS
3 DIRECTORS THEIR SPOUSE AND MINOR CHILDREMN
Ms. Erurm Bilweanl 1 55,455 041 43.07
M. Wiajid Hussain 1 Z
Mr. Muhammad Ahmed asood 1 1
Syed Raza Haider Jatri 1 1
Mr. Shehzad Hussain L .
wir. BMuhammad Ashfag 1 2
Wr, Bdvharmmad Rehan Alam 1 2
SPOUSE OF DIRECTORS
ATNEER BILW AN (FY 1 1,076,001 084
MINOR CHILDREN OF DIRECTORS 56,531,052
4 EAECUTIVES -
5 PUBLIC SECTOR COMPANIES & CORPORATIONS -
6 BANEKS, DEVELOPMENT FINANCE [NSTITUTION -
7 OTHERS (INDIVIDUALS, BROKERAGE HOUSE, JOINT STOCK COMPANIES) 18,939,647 1471
128,751,024 13000
Summary of Shareholding - Origin Wise Origin No. of Shares Yo
Foreign 10,207,991 7.93
Local 118,543,033 97 .07
SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING 5% OR MORE OF THE VOTING SHARES/INTRESTS IN THE COMPANY
Number Of
Mumber of % of
M .
ames Share:crlder Shares Held | Shareholding
Erum Bilwani 1 55,455,041 4307
Urait Bilwani 1 53 280,325 41.38
EFG-Hermes Frontiers Holdings LLC 1 10,207,982 7.92
SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING 10% OR MORE OF THE VOTING SHARES/INTRESTS IM THE COMPANY
Number Of
Number of % of
Pamas 5""“":'“"’” Shares Held | Shareholding
Erum Bitvani 1 55,455 041 43.07
Urgib Bllwani 1 53,280,325 4138
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EECURITIEE LTD

FORM OF PROXY
INTERMARKET SECURITIES LIMITED

IMPORTANT NOTE
This form of Proxy duly completed must be deposited at the Registered
Office of the Company, 5" Floor, Bahria Complex-IV, Ext. Block,
Choudhry Khalique-uz-Zaman Road, Gizri, Karachi, Pakistan, not later
than 48 hours before the time of the meeting.

I"We of

being member(s) of

INTERMARKET SECURITIES LIMITED and holding
Ordinary Shares as per Registered Folio No./CDC Investor Account/Participant ID and
investor/Sub Account Na.
hereby appoint of
or failing him/her

of
who is/are as my/our proxy to vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual
General Meeting of the Company to be held on Monday, April 28, 2025 at 3:00 PM and /

or any adjournment thereof.

Signed this day of 2025.

Signature
over
Revenue
Stamp

of Rs.5

Witness: Witness:

SIGMATURE SIGMNATURE
Name: Mame:
CNIC Mo, CHNIC Na.:

Address: Address:
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AFFIX
CORRECT
POSTAGE

INTERMARKET SECURITIES LIMITED

SthFloot, Babeia Complex-IV, Ext. Block,
Chondbey Ehalique-uz-Zaman Road, Gized, Karachi, Paldstan
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